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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Interarch Building Products Private Limited

A

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Interarch Building Products Private
Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report™, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

SR Batlbo & Co. LLP. 3 Limited Liabibty Partnersrip with LLP Igentity No. AAB-4294
Rega. Offce - 22. Camac Street, Biock '8 3rd Floor, Kokkata 700016




SR Baruoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position. financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards Rules, 2015, as amended This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgement and mainiain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions. misrcpresentations, or the override
of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going




S.R Barusoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
1™ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act. we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies { Indian Accounting Standards) Rules.
2015, as amended

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31. 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 2023,
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of
such controls. refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 27 1o this report.

(g) The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company
for the year ended March 31.2023:
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(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 1]
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the Ind AS financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
i1 the note 44 to the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(*Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other person(s} or
entity(ies) identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in the note 44 to the Ind AS financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company {rom any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™).
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other person(s) or entity(ies) identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause {a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1.2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Onap

per Anil Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 87921
UDIN: 23087921 BGXAVI5599
Place of Signature: Noida

Date: June 20, 2023
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING OF “REPORT ON
OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS™ OF OUR AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN

DATE

Re: Interarch Building Products Private Limited (*the Company’)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state

that:

(i)(a)XA)

(iNa)(B)
(i)(b)

{B)(c)

(i)d)

(iYe)

(ii)a)

(il

(iiiXa)

(ifi}(b)

(iti)(c)

(iii}(d}

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, inciuding quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management during the year 2022-23
in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them once in three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the lessee,
and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including Right of use assets} or
intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory including inventory lying with third
parties at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

As disclosed in note 14(b) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working capital
limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during the year on the
basis of security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with
such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made investment in. provided any loans or advances in the nature
of loans secured or unsecured, stood guarantee Or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties except loan to employees which are as follow:

Particulars Amount {INR in lakhs)
Aggregate amount of loans provided during the year 52.36
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above 25.27
loans

The terms and conditions of the grant of all such loans to employees are not prejudicial to the C ompany’s
interest.

In respect of loans granted to employees. the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of such loans granted to employees which are overdue for more than ninety days.
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(iii}()) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand

(iv)

V)

{vi)

or with'out specifying any terms or period of repayment to any Company or any other parties.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of Sections 185
anfi 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made
thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{v) of the Crder
is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of its products, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed
examination of the same.

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and service tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,

income-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few
cases. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at

the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax. provident fund, employ

custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on

account of any dispute, are as follows:

ees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of

Name of the Amount (INR Period to which Forum where dispute
Statute Nature of dues in lakhs) the amount is pending
relates
Finance Inierest on Service Tax (Non- 125.37 2008-09 and 2009- | Commissioner
Act, 1994 payment of interest on Service 10 Customs, Excise &
Tax demand on import of Service Tax Appellate
design charges under reverse Tribunal, Noida
charge)
West Bengal VAT (Non-production of 312.06 2007-2008 to Senior Joint
Value Added documents in support of the 2009-2010 Commissioner,
Tax Act, 2003 VAT return) Commercial Tax,
Kolkata
Goa, Daman and | Sales Tax (Higher duty 44.04 2001-2002 Bombay High Court at
Diu {Sales Tax) | demand on account of wrong Goa
Act, 1964 classification of goods)
Karnataka, VAT (Higher duty demand on Liability not 2012-2013 Deputy commissioner
Value Added account of wrong ascertainable* of Commercial Taxes.
Tax. 2003 classification of goods) Karnataka
Jharkhand Value | VAT (including penalty) 15.76 2008-09 Joint commissioner of,
Added Tax, (Demand of tax and penalty Commercial Tax,
2005 on account of excess Jharkhand
deduction of labour cost)
Income Tax Acl, | Income Tax (Disallowance 129.34 A.Y.2006-2007 | Income Tax Appelilate
1961 under Section 80-1B) Tribunal {ITAT), New
Delhi
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax (Double taxation 46.44 AY.2020-2021 Commissioner of
1961 of Interest Income and Income Tax (Appeals)
disallowance of other amount
allowable as deduction)
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Central Sales CST (Non Submission of 1.38 2010-2011 Additional
Tax Act, 1956 Form F) Commissioner
{DVAT), Delhi
Pondur House Tax (Demand raised by 13.92 2010-11 to 2022~ | President (A) Executive
Panchayat, Pondur Panchayat towards 23 Officer, Sriperumbudur
Tamil Nadu non payment of House Tax) Panchayat Union
State Industries | Infrastructure and Amenities 17.55 2008-09 10 2022- | Madras High Court
Promotion charges with respect to 23
Corporation of | Industrial Building approval
Tamilnadu {(including interest)
Limited
(SIPCOT) Rules
Finance Act, Service Tax (Service tax on Liability not June 2007 to Customs Excise &
1994 service provided to be ascertainable** March 2014 Service Tax Appellate
categorized under Works Tribunal, Allahabad
contract service (inciuding
penalty)).
Employees Provident fund 30.83 2007-08 10 2014~ | Central Government
Provident Fund 15 Industrial Tribunal
& Miscellaneous (CGIT)-cum-Labour
Provisions Act, Couwrt. Lucknow
1952
Finance Act, Interest on Service Tax and 143.36 2017-18 10 2021- | Directorate General of
1994 Krishi Kalyan Cess (KKC) 22 Goods & Service Tax
Intelligence Unit,
Dehradun

* Refer note 35(i) of financial statements
#* Refer note 35(iii) of financial statements

(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)
{(ix)(d)

(ix)(e)

(ix)(f)

(x)a)

(x)(b)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of
account, in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government
or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the foans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company. no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly. the requirement to
report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary. associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public
offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, the requirement Lo report on clause 3(x)a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partiaily
or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. peoy
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(xi)@) No fraud/material fraud by the Company or no fraud/material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi)(b) During the year, no report under Sub-section (12} of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been

filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors} Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(xiYc) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The _Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disciosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The provisions of Section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to Section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(xiv)(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period under audit
have been considered by us.

(xv)  The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)a) The provisions of Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to
the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(xvi)(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(¢) The Company is nota Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii)  The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

(xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement 0
report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 43 to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements. our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention. which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guaranlee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx)(@) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be transferred
to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso
to sub section 5 of Section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special
account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of Section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 26 to the financial staiements.

(xxi) There are no other companies as part of the Group. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated
financial statement, hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Osf
per Anil Gupta \
Partner

Membership Number: 87921
UDIN: 23087921BGXAVI359¢

Place of Signature: Noida
Date: June 20, 2023
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE Ind AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of Interarch Building
Products Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, inciuding adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (ihe “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both issued by 1CAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls with reference to the Ind AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements. assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contro! based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with relerence to Ind AS financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
‘nternal financial contrals with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

Recause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements to future periods are subject to the
visk that the internal financial control with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference 1o
these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

per Anil Gupta
Partner
Membership Number: 87921
UDIN: 23087921BGXAVI5599
Place of Signature: Noida

Date: June 20, 2023
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Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023

tAmaount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Particulars Notes Asat Asat Asat
Maech 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Assuts
Nun-current assels
::::?):‘:3:.,‘:'::‘; [:|:;il::|,mpmcnl 3 10.3‘1! 04 9.903.68 10,623 63
S 1 2850 INT A5 A7 74
[ll[.l.llglll!l: assels 5 i 13 £ 17 %
Righi=ol-usc assets [ 535758 5360 9| $.34778
1 mancial assets
1y fnvestments Aa) sl ur 038 58
) Tande u:-cmuhlcs Fib)ie) 1837100 2,795 11 3.328 98
e Othet finaneral assets nn 159 84 406 69 0467
Non=cunieni [ay asiels 8 18783 13930 72799
Oller ton-curreht 5sets 9 408.32 193 87 68.36
‘Totul gup=currenl itsseds 21,1375 19.020.84 20,672.49
Current assets
I es 10 13,697 58 13412706 9191 77
Contiact assels T 279294 2,124 00 1.660 91
Fieancial assets
11y Traele veceanables K] 1587075 $.570.13 687218
i) Cash and cash equivalents Te) 5,866 31 1.010 48 198 62
cannp Bk balances ather than () abuve Ndy 6.054 4 5.165 37 6.198 5%
vk Loans Tie) 27.6} 366 2620
v ) Othen finaneiak asscls TN 101 83 1181 a1 33
Current ax assels 8 - 560.06 -
Other curent assets 1 1,860.33 1,359.17 1,135.40
| Tatal current assets 46,371.82 35,354.47 20,274.94
Tota issels 67,502.57 5.4,375.31 46,947.43
F.quity amd liabilities
Fauity
L quity shae capial 12 1300 UG 1.500 06 150000
O equn 38,427 84 0,331 85 RAIB D
“lonyl equity 3083790 RIR AT 29,978.2%
Linbilitices
Nynegurrent fiabilities
el habshuies
10 ) ¢ase labibines 142) ST 11475 119.08
tuy Hunowings (b} 110.56 101 92 12.60
Goverment gias 15 386 133 8.79
Net employee defined benehit libilitics 33 906 38 1.974.77 1,928.49
[heleried tx habalies (net) 30 588 47 246,91 612.50
‘Tats) non-cnrrent fiabilities 2.189.01 2.745.68 2.982.06
Current liahilities
Comact habilities 16 10,602 61 8.75%u9 1,398 23
Fmancial lalbilgics
N Lease fbihiies 14a) 3670 33R2 18 10
(i Buirowings [ETTH] 1,027 81 23420 182,33
tuny Lrade paynbles [EIT3]
“Total amstandng dies of nscra enernIscs and small enterpnses aut 1 73423 076 53
- Fotal outstauging dues ol cicditors other than meero enterprises and 9458 9& 731172 6,303 29
small enterprises
iv) Other financial liabiines 14(d) 1,186.44 110298 1.002.60
Provisions 17 13748 11578 25002
Crnvernnigii grants 15 147 147 1.47
Net enpluyee defined beaefit abilaics i3 BU0 A0 15443 18295
Oty verent habdines % 1.207 14 1,230 0% 93 Yo
it lon_curpent an (el . 8 - §12 95 -
i current linhiligies e o e AR50, T urIr o __)3OETM
‘Fatul kabilisies 27.587.L.07 23,543.40 10.969.14
f-nm_l_g_qLil\' and tinhilities — 07,5112.57 S1,378.51 A6, H7. 48
Sunnsacy ol spputicant accouminmng policies 2
The azcunpanyug voles feam an wegral part of these finnesl statemems
As pet our repurt of even date.
For S.1¢, Balibei & Co, LLT / ¢t and on behali-af the Board of Diregl S—
1C Al Fumn Regstianon No. 501003E/F300003 - Interarch Building ProducsTrivate Limig
Charteved Accoutanls -
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Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U43201DLIY83PTCO 7029

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(Fuce value of'Rs 10.00 (March 31. 2022: Rs 10.00)

Particulars Naotes For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from vperations 19 1,12.392.60 83,194 24
Other incume 20 1.246.46 39137
Total incame (1) 1,13,639.06 84.085.61
Fxpenses
Cust of raw material and components consumed 21 74.273.53 56.943.62
Increase in inventories of finished goods and work-in- 22 (1.025.19) (458.92)
progress
Fmployvee benefits expense 23 9.336 30 $.922.28
I ingnee cosis 24 259.62 44549
[epreciation and amortizallon expense 25 729.62 1.175.73
Other expenses 26 19.169.91 14,798 19
Tot expenses {11) 1,02.743.79 §1,826.39
Profit hefure tax (I-11=111H 10.895.27 2.259,22
Ty expense
- Current tax 30 232344 928.05
- Adjustment of mcome fax relating to earhicr 30 32 89 1627
veitrs thgld
- Deterred tax charge/teredit) 30 J20.09 {385.23)
- Deferred tax charae/(crediy) for earlier year 30 (47.39) 113.23)
Income tax expense (1Y) 2,749.03 545.86
Profit for the year (1I-IV=Y) 8.146.24 1.713.36
Otiter comprehensive income (Y1)
Ttem that will not be re-ciassified to profit or loss
Remeisurement gains/{losses) of defined benelit liability 1123.74) i30.58
[neume tax elfect 14 132.37)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) (V1) - gain/{loss) (92.60) 97.74
Tutal comprehensive income for the year (Y+V1=VII) 8,053.64 1.811.07
Earnings per equity share
Basic & Diluted tin Rs.} 31 54.31 i1.42

Swmmary of significant aceounting policies. 2

The uccompairy ing notes lorm an miegral par ol these linancial statements
As per our repart ol even date

'or 8.R. Batliboi & Co. LLT
fCALFirm Registrition No. 301003E/1:300005

Quartered Accounlants &

per Anil GGupta
ariner
Membership no. 87921

e Danels
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Arvind Nanda
{Managing Dircctor)
DIN: 00149426

hiel Executive Officer)

Anil Kumar Chandani
{Chief Financial Officer)
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(Director)
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vidhi (Foel
(Conmypany Secretary)
Membership no. A19279




Internrch Building Produets Private Limited

CIN: L4520 DL IE3PTCUI702Y

Sratement of ¢ash Now Tor the vewr ended March 31, 2023
tAtnount in lukhs, unless stherwise stated)

Particnlars For the year ended Far the year ended
] March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash Qow Fraam vperating activitics
Prafit befie tox 10.895 27 225922
Adyusiments for
Depreciation s amornzahon expense 29062 1.175.73
Allpwance for doubaful debts and advinees - 57939
Rad debis'adhances written off {net) 258 17 9238
Rad Jdcbes recovered (50 70y ERL]
Net gam on disposal af property, plant wad equipment {1088 (B30}
Net gain on sale of mvestment prapertics (619 (467
Fair value gaw oo financial wstruatents at far value theough profit or loss (10% -
Guoyvernment grants (47 (1ATY
Interest meome (5712 1327.04)
Pruvisien for doubtful debts/ advances written back (ney) (448.68) -
Guarantee charges 4235 42,55
lnerest expense 120 63 32100
Operating profit before worlidng capital changes 10.953.17 4,013 87
Adjustments for:
(Necrease} - Increase in provisions {5324 86) 1412
Inerease m hade payables 24077 EO06 10
Tnerease in other finaneanl lialahties 9208 1sol
lncrease ut other hataliics 1,852 04 4.511.95
tInerense) in trade recenables (8.191.60) (1.80381)
Decrense  (Increnses in loums 603 (74
Enceease o mnenlones (284 §2» {3.620 99)
Iigsease m other assels (1.318 28) 33 on
Decrease  tlncrease) i other financial assets 3198 (S EA)]
Cash acneratell froin operations 5,11239 3AL3LT
Direct tines paid (ot ol refinds) 1.977 78 402 73
Net ensh peaneratel from operafing activities (A) 3031 0l 261044
It. Casls flows Tepm investing activities
Purehase af propetty. plant and cquipment and itangibile assels (1,364 75) (387.25)
Praceeds from sale ol property, plant and equipmient 26 62 17.83
Praceeds from sale of invesiment propertics 2240 23689
Purchase of mvestiments [ER DL -
Proceeds from bank deposits (having onginal maturity more than three manths) (642.78) 720,28
Interest recenved 552.60 32791
Net cush (used inyuenernted Mo investing uctivities (B) £1.904 50} 915.68
., Cash flow fram Ninanging activiries
Proceeds from Jong=term borrowings 711 141 35
Repasment of lang-terin borrowings (4921 (6T 749y
Proceeds from shori-term borrowings {net} T4 6713
Interest pand {2 ) 8517
Iaterest pand on lease Tiabiliy {61 84 (41.19)
Payinent towaeds principal porton of lease hability (51 54 {2857
Net cash Now gencrated fromd{used in) financing activities (C) 626 13 {14.26)
~et inereuse in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 1,455.84 351186
Cash and cash equaalents at the beginnmg of the year 401043 498 62
Cash und cosh cquivnlenis nt the end of the vear 5,806,532 401048
Components ul cash and cash equivalents -
Ast Asal
Particulurs Mareh 31, 2023 Maurch 31, 2022
Balance with banhs
- i cursent ACCownts 1097 781
- 1n cash credit aveounts 12107 91937
Deposits with original matunty of less than three months 5430.14 07711
Cheques drafts on land . 340
Cush an haad q4.14 2.77
Cusli und cash equividents [refer note F(e}(i)] 5.866,32 401048

Summary of’ sigm ficant accountmg poliies 2




Interarch Building Produets Private Limited

CIN LS00 DLIME3IrTCO 17029

Statement of cash flow for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(Amuunt in Jukhs, unless etherwise stated)

Noles:
t1) The Statement of cash Nlows has been prepared in accordance with ‘Indirect method' as set out m Ind AS - 7 - Statement of cash flows'

116) Nonecash financing and investing activiies

Asat Asat
Particulars March 31, 2023 BMarch 31, 2022

Acquisition’ modification of right fo use asscls 23742 29123

() Refer Note e for Change i liabilities artsg fom financig ackvities
The accodmpiny ing notes form an wvieprad pant of these Anancial statements

As per our report of even dute

For 5.1, Badihol & Co, LLP
Chanered Accouniants

w Rewistration plo. A01003E/E3000035

ner Anil Gupta
Paruer
Membership ne. 87921

Arvind Nanda
Manauing Directar)
DIN OU1-HM26

Al Kunr Chandani NillizGoe

T Kumar Gurg,

Tuef Executive Oficer) (Chizf Finaneial Qfficer) {Company Secretary}
Membership uo A19279
Mace : Nowda

Da:e&o, O'G J_az%

Place
Date




Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:UAS201DL1I9B3PTCOIT02Y

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
tAmount in lxlchs, unless otherwise stated)

A, Equity share capital

Particuliars Naote Numbers Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2021 12 1,50,00.600 1.500.06
(hanges in equity share capilal
durmng the year - -

Balance as at March 30, 2022 12 1,50,00.600 1,500.06

Changes in equity share capital
durmg the year

Balanee as at March 31, 2023 12 1,50,00,600 1,500.06

B. Other equity
Particulars Note Equity Reserve and surplus

component Securities General Retained Tutal

ol guarantee premium reserve earnings

{Note-13) {(Note 13) (Note 13) {Note 13)

Balxnee as av April 01, 2021 13 - 9, 14997 3,089,012 [3.814.80 28.623.95
Clanges in geeaunting policy or priar period {14372y (145.72)
errors
Restated balanees as at April £1, 2021 - 9,149.97 5,659.12 13,669.14 28.478.23
Addition during the year 42.55 42.55
Profit for the year - - - 1.713.36 1,713.36
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 97.71 47 71
Balance as at March 31, 2022 13 42.55 9.149.97 5,689.12 15,480.21 30,331.85
Balunce as wl Apnl 01, 2022 13 42.33 9.149.97 5.659.12 15.480.21 30.331.85
Addition during the year 42.35 42,33
’rofit for the year - - - 8.146.24 8.146.241
Other compreliensive incame for the year - - - (92.60) {92.60)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 I3 84.90 9,140.97 5,659.12 23,533.85 38.427.84

Nature sand purpose of reserves

Securitivs premium

Securities premium account represents the amount received in excess of par value of sccuritics (equity sharcs). The rescrve is utilised in accordance with
the pravisions ol the Companies Act. 2013

CGreneral reserve
Tlhis represents appropriation of profit by the Company. General reserve is created by o transfer from one component ol equity to another and is not an
wem ol other comprehensive incame,

Retwined earnings
Retmned carnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve. Retained carnings include re-measurement
luss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will nol be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The sccompanyng notes form an integral part of these financral statements.

As per our report ot even date.

Fur 5.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
1CAL Firm Remistration No. 301003E/E300003

Chartered Accountants

per Anil Gupta

Partner
Membership no 87921

Arvind Nanda h&wi

(Managing Director} (Director}
DIN: 00149426 N 00149374 5

-
1

-
rd

! ish Kumar Gafg AnilKumar Chandani Nidhi Goel
{Chiet Exceutive Qiticer) {Chiet Financial Oflicer) tCompany Sceretan )

Membership no. A19279
Place . Noida

Date ;{f) 06\)\0'9\%




INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: 145201 DL1983PTC017029

Notes forming part of the financial statetnents for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in lnkhs, unless othenvise stited)

Corporite infornettion

Interarch Building Products Private Limited ("the Company™) was meorporated on November 30, 1983 as & private imitd Company wnder te
provisions ol the Compantes Act apphicable m India The Company’s regstered office 1s Farm No -8, Khasra No 36/23/2, Dera Mandi Road Mandt
Viltage. Tehsid Mehraule, New Dellu- 110047 The Comypany 15 engaged m he manufactarmg. supply. erection and mstallation af Pre- engineered
steel construcnon solutions, metal roofing & cladding system. metal false colng and hght gauge lrammg sysiem

The finaneal statements For the year ended March 31, 2023 were approved by U Board ol Direciors and autherised for issuc on June 20, 2023,

Significant Accounting Policics

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance wuh Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) noulied under the
Compames (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 (as amended from time to ume) and presentation requirements of Division 1 ot Schedule 1T
to the Compames Act. 2013, ([nd AS compliant Schedule 111), as applicable w the (inancial statements

‘The Bnancial statements up 1o year ended March 31, 2022 were prepared i accordance with e accounting standards notified under Secuion 133 ol
the Compames Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Accounting standards) Rules 2021 and presentation reguirements of Dwvision | of
Schedule T 1o the Compantes Act, 2013 (Previous GAAR/Indian GAAR')

These linancial statements for the year ended March 3§, 2023 are the first fmancial statements of the Company that has been prepared in accordance
with Ind AS.

The transition fram previous GAAP to Ind AS has been accounted for in aceordance with the Ind AS 101 “First Time Adoption of Indan
Accounting Standards”, with Aprit 01, 2021 being the ransition date Tn accordance with the Ind AS 101 “First time adopuon of Indun Accountung
Standard”. the Company has presented a reconciliation [from the presentauon of Indian GAAP financial statements o Ind AS] ol wtal equity as at
Apnil 01, 2021, March 31, 2022 and siastement ol profu and loss Tor the year ended March 31, 2022 Reter note 42 for an explanatian of how the
transitan fram previous GAAP to Ind AS s affected the Company’s Timancial postton, tmancial perfarmance and cash ews

The fnancal statements lave been prepared on a histoncal cost s, exeept fot the tellowing assets and labihiies which lave been measured at
ur vitlue or revitued wmoum

al  Property, plant and equipnmient

) Right-of-use assels

¢} Certam financial assets and Liabilities measured at fair value (reter accounting policy regarding financial instruments}

&y Lease liability 1s measured at the present valug of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessce’s incremental borrowing rate at

the date of initial application
¢)  Net delined benefit (asset)f hiability
The Campary has prepared the (inancial staiements on the basis that 1t will continue 10 operate as a gomg concern
The financial Staements ace presented in Indian Rupee (TNR) and all salues are raunded to the nearest kakhs (NR 00,000), except when otherwise
indieated

Sutmmary of significant accounting policies
Current yersus non-current classifieation
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Lalance sheet based on current/ not-current classification, An assel s treated as current when itis

a)  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, of

b lleld primanly for the purpose of trading; or

¢3 Expeeted to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period. or

d) Cash or cash cquivatent unless restricied frum beng exchanged or used to settle a habiliny Tor at least twelve months alter the reporung peniod

All other assels are classitied as non-curniem

A liabrlity 18 current when

Ay Itis expected to be settled m normal operating cycle, or

br It held primanly for the purpose of wrading. ar

¢)  Itsdueto be seitled within twelve months afier the reporting periad; of

d)  There is no uncenditional right Lo defer the settlement of the linbility for at least twelve months afier the reporting period

All other liabiliues are classified as non-current

Deterred tax ussets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and labilies

The aperating cycle is the ime betwesn the acquisition of asscts For processing and ther realisation in cash and cash equivalents The Company lias
wlentified twelve months as 1s operating cycle




INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CTN: 145201 DL1983PTC017029

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2023
(Amount in lakhs, unless othervise stated)

1L

Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial stsements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity eperates (“the
functional currency™). The financial statements are presented i Tndian rupee (INR), which s Company’s funcuonal and presentation currency
Transuctions and balances

Transactions in foreign cusrencies are wtially recorded by the Company’s at functional cusrency spot rates an the date the wransaction [rst qualifies
lor recogmiion Monetary assets and habiities denomumated m foreign currencies are translated at the functonal currency spot rates of exchange M
the reporung date Exchange differences ansing on settlement or translaton of monetary tems are recopmsed n profit or loss Non-monetary items
that are measured tn terms of listorical cast m i foreign currency are transkated using the exchange rate at the date of muatial transaction

All foreign exchange gatns and losses are presented in the stalement of profis and luss on 3 net basis

In deteemuning the spol exchange rate to use on izl recogmuon of the related assel, expense o meome (ur part of ) on the derecogmition ol a non-
monetary assel or non-monetary Hability refating o advanee conssderation, the date of the transaction is the date on which the Company initally
recognises e non-monetary asset or non-monetary bty arising tfram the advance consideration 1l there are muluple payments of receipts in
advance. the Company determines the ransacuon date lor gach payment or receipt of advance consideration

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrument. such as, derivatives at far value at each batance sheet date. Fair value 1s the price that would be
recerved 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement Jate The tar value
measurement 15 based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sefl the asset or transfer the lability takes place either

- In the prineipal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or liability

The prencipal or the muost advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

The fuir vitlue of an asset or a liabiliy is measured using the assumptions tiat market parucipants would use when pncing the asset ur liablity,
assuming that markes participants act in their economic best interest

A far value measurement of a non-financial assel takes 1o account a market paricipant’s absbry to generate cconomic benefits by usmg the assel
1 its highest and best use or by selling it 1o anether marker participant that woutd use the asset m us lighest and best use

The Company uses valuation techmgues that are appropriate in the circumstances and For which sulficient data are available to measure Tar value,
maximising the use of relevant vbservable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable mputs

All assets and habilities for which fair value 15 measured or disclosed m the financial statements are categonised within the Gare value huerarchy,
described as Tollews, based on the Losvest level input that 15 sigmificant to the T varlue measurement as i whole

e Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markels tor wdentical assets or liabilwies

. level 7 — Valuaton technques for whueh the lowest level put that s signiicant to the G vilue mcaswiement s diestly or indiectly
ahservible
¢ Level 3 — Valuaton technrques for which the lewest level input that s sipnificant 1o the fur vilue measurement 1s unobservable

For assets and labidities thay are recognised in the fnancial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether ransiers have
occirred between levels in the heerarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level wput that 1s significant o the fanr value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reparting period.

The Company’s finance department includes team thit determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fur value measurement, such as
valuation of assets and labihiues required for fmancial reporung purposes. meluding level 3 ur values

Externat valuers are volved for valuation of signiticam assels, such as Property, plant and cquipment and Right of use assels- leasehold land and
labihities such as corporate guaraniec and personal guarantee Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Minance team after
discusston with and approval by the Chiel’ Financial OtTicer (CFO), Chiel Executive Oftficer (CEO) and Managing Director tMD) Selecuon criteria
nelude market knowledge, reputauon, independence and whether professional standards are mantained.

The finance team and CFO decides, after discussions with the CEOQ, MD an external vafuers, which valuation iechniques and nputs to use (or each
case At each reporting date, the linance team analyses the movemenis in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured ar
re-nssessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysrs, the finance team verifies the major mpuls applied in the Tatest valuption
agreemng the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevamt documents.

The linance team also compares the change in the Far value of each asset and habiliy with relevant external sources 1o delermine whether the
change s reasonable

On an mteran basts, the fmance team present the valuation results W the CFO. CFO, MDD and the Company s mdependent auduors Thas meludes a
discussion of the major assumptions used w the valuations

For the purpose of faw value disclosures, the Company has determned classes of assets and lbihities on the basss of the nature, eharaciensucs and
11sks of the asset or lability and the Level of the fr value inerarchy as explained above

Farr value related disclosure for financial mstruments and non-financial assels which are measured at Fair value are disclosed in the relevant notes




INTERARCH BUILDING PRODUCTS PRIVATE LIMITED

CTN: 1145201 DL1983PTC017029

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2023
(Amuount in lalhs, unless otherwise stated)

V.

Revenue from contract with customer

The Campany caters into Lwe types of contracts with customers 1o lxed price contract and vaniable price contrack Variable price contracts are such
cantracts wherem price of goods or services 18 caleulated by reference Lo 3 hase steel price agreed with customers i the time of contract execulion
The Campany enters in vanable price contracts for sale of pre-engineered bwlding and sale of building material contracts Under these contracts,
price of pre-engineered building and building material are calculated in reference to steel prices

Revenue from conteacts with customers is recognised when contral of the goods or services are translerred 1o the customer at an amount that rellects
the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services The Company has generally concluded that 0
15 the principal in ils revenue arrangements, because 1t typically conlrols the goods or services before transfernng them 10 the customer

The disclosure of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating 1o revenue fram contracts with customers are provided m
Nowe 32

sale of Pre-engincered building (PEB) coniraets
In respect of pre-enginecred building contracts. revenue 15 recogimsed over i period off ume using the mput methad (equivalent o pereentage ol
compleuon method. POCM ) of accounting with contract costs meurred determunmg the degree ot completion ol the performance obligation
Revenue 15 measured based on the transacuon price, wiuch 15 the consideravion. adjusted for volume discounts, price congessions and mcenteves, 1
any. as speeified m the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected rom customers on behalf of the government
Percentage of completion 15 determined on the basts ol proportion of the cosis of shipment made and cost of erection ncurred as agamst the total
cstimated cost of shupment and ereciion.
Cantracts are combined when the Company believes the underlying goods and services are a sigle performance obligation. smgle commercial
obyective o1 the constderation in one contract depends on another Else contracts are separated
Where the totl cost of a contract, based on technical and other estumites 15 expected (o exceed the carresponding contract value. such expected loss
1s provided for. The efiect of any adjustment from revisions 10 estimate is included in the statement of profit and foss for the period in which
revisians are made
Liguidated danages (1.D) represents the expected clum which the Company may need to pay for non-fulfilment of certain comantments as per the
terms of respective sales contract. These are determined on case to case basis considering the dynamics of each cohtract and (he lactors relevan to
that sale.
The Company bas applicd Ind AS 115 "Revenue from contracts with customers™ whuch cstablishes a comprehensive framework fur deteenunimg
whether. how much and when revenue is to be recognised Ind AS 113 replaces Ind AS 18 "Revenue™ and Ind AS 11 “Construction Contracts” The
ofTect of initially applying this standard is recognised at the date of initial applicatian (i.c. April 1. 2021). The Company has adopted Ind AS 113
using the modified retrospective fFansition approach Under the modified retrospective approach. there were no sigmificant adjustinents requared o
the retamed earmings at April 1, 2021 Also, the application of Ind AS 115 did noi have any sigmificant mpact on recognisan and measurement ul
revenue and refated items m the (inancial statements
Sale of Products
Building muterials
Revenue from sule of butdme materqds 15 recogmsed at the point n ume when contrel of the asset 15 transferred (o the customer, generally on
delivery ol the material. The paviment terms depends upon ¢ach contract eatered mlo w ith the customer
The Company considers whether there are other pramises in the contract that are separate performance obhgatons o which a poriwen ol the
transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g, warranties) In deternunmg the transacuan price lor the sale of misterial, the Campany consulers the
eftects of varuble consideration, the existence of sigmificant finanemg components, non cash consideration, and consideration payable (o the
customer (i any)
{i)y Variable Consideration
I the consideration n a contract includes a vanable amount, the Company estimates the amount of cansideration (o which tt wili be entitled m
evchange for wansferring the goeds Lo the customer. “The variable consideration 15 estimated al contract ingeplion and consiramed until 113
ighly probable that a sigmficant revenue reversal n the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will nut occur when the associated
uneertamty will the variable consideration 1s subsequenily resoived
The revenue on account of extra claims on Pre-engineering Building contricts are accounted for at the ume of aeceptance/setlement by the
customers, due to uncertaintics attached there to

(i) Significan{ financing componcent
The Company applies the practical expedient Tor shon-term advances received From customers That 1s. the promised amount of consideration
is not adjusted for the elTects of @ sigmificant financng component il the pertod between the wransfer af’ the promised good or service and the
payment is ong year or less

(i) Warranty obligations
The Company typically provides warranties (or general repairs of defects that existed at the time of safe  These pssurance-type warrantics are
avcounted for wnder Ind AS 37 Erovisions, Comtingent Liabuiies and Contingent Assels
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tiv) Installation services
The Company provides wnstallation services that are bundied together with the sale ol products o 8 custumer
Contracts for bundled sales of praduct and installation services are considered as one perlormance obligations because company bebeves
wnderlying goods and services ure a single performance eblhigation, single commercial objective or the considerattan n onc contrict depends
on another.
The Company recognises revenue from installation services over time because the customer simullancously Feceives and consumes the benelits
provided to them. The Company uses an input method 1n measuring progress of the mstallation services because there 15 a direct relationship
between the Compiny's effort (i c., based on the labour hours incurred) and the transler of service to the customer. The Company recogmises
revenue on the bagis of the labour hours expended relative to the 1otal expected labour hours (o complete the service.

Interest income
bnterest income 1S recognized on a lime proportion basts taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate. Interest meome
15 included under the head “other income™ in the statement of profit and [oss.

Other
Other ems of income are accounted as and when the right 1o receive such income arises and it 15 probable that the econeune benelits will flow to
the Company and the amount of incame can be measured reliably.

Contract balances

a.  Contraet Assets:
Revenue sarned but not biled to customers agiwmst erection and sale of goods and services 15 reflecied as Contract assels hueause the recent of
consideration 1s condiional on Compam's performance under the contract (1 ¢ wanster control of refated gonds or serviees o the customer)
Upon completion of the mstallauon and acceptance by the customer. the amuunt recogmsed as contract assets s reclassified w rade

recervables.
Contract assets are subject to unpanment assessment Reler to accounting pohicies on impaurment of financial assets m Section XVI Financial

instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement

b, Trade Receivables
A receivable is recognised i’ an amount of consideration thal is unconditional (i ¢ , only the passage of ume s required before payment of the
consideeation 1s due) Refer to accounung pelicies of financial assels in section XVI Financsal mstruments — imnial recognition and
subsequent measurement

o Contract Linbilities:
A contract hability 15 recognised 1 a payment 1s received or a payment 15 due (whichever 1s earhier) {Tom a customer before the Company
translers the related goeds or services Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company perlorms under the contract {1¢,
wransiers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Government grants

Government grants are recogmised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item. itis recoghised as income on @ systematic basis over the penods that the related costs. for which it
15 intended Lo compensate, arc expensed. When the grant relates to an asset. it is recagnised as inwome in equal amounts over the expected useful life
ol the related assel

When the Company receives grants of non-mongiary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at Carr vabue amounts and released 1o profit or loss
over the expected useful hie in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset 1e by ¢qual annwal nstalments

The Company has clected to present the grant i the balance sheet as deferred mcome, which 1s recogmsed 1 profit or loss on a systemauc and

rational basis over the useful hfe of the asset.

Taxes:

a.  Current Income Tax
Cusrent meome tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or pard to the wxation authenities The tax
vates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted. at the reporting date in the countries where
the Company operates and generates taxahle income.

Current mcome tax relating to ems recognised outside profit or loss s recopmised outside profit or loss (erther 1n ather comprehensive income
or in equity). Current fax items are recognised in correlation to the underlving transaction ewher in OC1 or direetly i equty. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken m the (ax resums with Tespect to situations in whuch applicable tax regulations are subject Lo
interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The Company shall reflect
the effeet of uncertamty for each uncertam tax wreatment by using enther most likely method or expected value method. depending on which
method predicts better resolution of the treatment.
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b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts For financial reporung purposcs at the reporting date,

Deferred tax habilities are recognised for all taxable wemporary differences. except when the deferred tax liabilty anses from the iniaal
recogmtion of goodwill or an asset or lialnlity i a transaction thatt ss net a business combmition and. at the tme of the wansaction, alTects
nerther the accounting prafit nor taxable profitor loss

Deferred 1ax assets are recogmised for all deductible wemporan difterences. the carny forward of unused tax credus and any wnused 1x losses
Deterred tax assets are recagmsed to the extent Usit it is probable that tirable profn wil be available agamst which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused G losses can be utihsed. except when the deferred ax asset relaing to e
deductible temporary difference anises (rom the initial recognition of an assel or hiabidiy in @ transacuion that 15 not 4 business combimnation
and. at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accountng profit nor taxable profit or foss

The carrying amount of’ deferred tax assels is reviewed at each reportng date and reduced 1o the extent thai it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to ailow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-
assessed at each reporiing date and are recogmised Lo the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will ullow the deferred
tax asset Lo be recovered

Deterred tax assets and habihiies are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply m the year when the asset is realised. or the habily
s setiled, based on ax rates (and tax laws) that lave been enacted or substantvely enacted at the reporting date

Deferred wx relating 1o items recognised outside profi or loss 1s recognised ouiside profit or loss (cither in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Deferred tax items are recognised n correlation to the underlying transaction cither in OCF or direetly in equuy.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax habilittes if and only if u has a legally enforecable right 1o set ofT current 1ax assels
and current tax liabilikies and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabiliics relate 10 ncome taxes fevied by the same taxation authority

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assels, the Company relies on the same (orecast assumptions used elsewhere in the (inancial
statements and in other management reporis

e Goods and service taxes (GST) paid on acquisition of asscts or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assels are recugnised net ol the amuount of goods aml service taxes pad, excepl
- when the s meurred on & purchsse ol assels of SeEvces 15 nol recey crable from the taxation auhority, m winel case, the @ax pnd s
recogmsed as part ol the cost ol peguastion al the assel or as pael of te expense item, as applicable
- when recervables and payables are stated with the amount el s included
The net amount of tax recoverable from, of payable to, he taxation authority 15 included as pirt of other current assels o habalities n the
balance sheet

Property, piant and equipment

Under the previeus GAAP, Property. plant and equipment and capital work tn progress were carried in the balance sheet at cost net of accumulated
depreciation and aceumulated impurment loss (il any) On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 1o measure all items ol property, plant and
cquipment at the date of ransition ie. April 01. 2021 10 Ind AS at its lair value and usc thit fair values as its deemed cost at that date

Capital work 1 progress 15 stated &1 cost, net of accumulated imparment luss, 1f any Plant and equipment are stated at cost, net ol accumulated
depreciavion and accumulated impairment fosses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met When sigmificant paris of plant and equipment are required 10 be
replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when o major inspecuion is performed.
1ts cost 15 recognised in (he carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement il the recognition criteria are satislied. All ather repair and
maumlenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset alter s
use (i any) 15 included in the cost of the respective assel it the recogaition cntena for a provision are mel As per estimale of the management, the
Company does noy have any expected cost of decomnussion on any asset

Subsequent expenduture related t an siem of property. plant and equipment is added to is book value only (11 inereases W future beaelis from the
existing asset beyond is previously assessed standard of pecformance. When signilicn parts are requered 1o be replaced at regular mervals, the
Company recogiises such parts as separate component of assels and Jdepreviates separiiely bused on therr specific uselud e When an stem of P'PL
v replaced. then its carrying amount 15 de-recognised and cost of the new items of PPE 13 recogised
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Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

a.  Depreciation on Factory buildings on Freehold land and Factory building on leasehold land having gross block of Rs 2,183.24 lakhs and Rs
3,051.10 lakhs is calculated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life afier considering the overall useful life of 40 years, (as
reassessed by management in an earlier years based on technical evaluation) which is higher than the useful life prescribed in Schedule IT to
the Companies Act, 2013,

b.  Depreciation on Non factory building on Freehold land and Non factory building on leasehold land having gross block of Rs 116.06 Iakhs and
Rs 229.42 lakhs is calculated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life after considering the overall useful life of 40 years, (as
reassessed by management in an earlier years based on technical evaluation) which is lower than the useful life preseribed in Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013.

¢.  Machinery spares are depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life of relaied plant and equipment or useful life of spare
pait, whichever is lower.

d.  Sccond hand vehicle of Rs 38.35 lakhs is depreciated on straight line basis over the remaining useful life after considering the overall useful
life of seven years, which is lower than the life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

e.  Depreciation on all other property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives
estimated by the management, which are equal to the corresponding rates prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates Buildings and certain items of plant
and equipment over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. The
management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair appraximation of the period over which the essets are likely to be
used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derccopnised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of praperty, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate,

Investment propertics

On transition to Ind As (i.e. April 01, 2021), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all investment properties measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

Investment propertics are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing cests for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of the investment properties ate required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their
specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation on electrical fittings & furniture and fixtures components of investment property having gross block of Rs 3.70 lakhs is calculated ona
straight line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful life estimated by the management, which are equal to corresponding life preseribed in
Schedule 11 to the Companies Act. 2013,

Depreciation on factory buildings component of investment property having gross black of Rs 132.52 lakhs is calculated on a straight line basis over
the remaining useful life after considering the overall useful life of 40 years (as re-assessed by the management in an earlier year based on technical
evaluation), which is higher than the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on residential property component of investment property of Rs 30.52 lakhs, which is yet to be available for use, will be caleulated
once the said property is available for use.

Depreciation on Leaschold land component of investment property taken on lease is calculated over the useful life or the period of primary lease of
90 years, whichever is lower,

Though the Company measures investment propertics using cost-based measurement, the fair value of investment properties are disclosed in the
notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an sceredited external independent valuer applying a valuation model
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from their disposal, The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment
properties the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant financing component, non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between investment property, owner-occupied
property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for
measurement or disclosure purposes.
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Intangible assets:

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the catrying value of all intangible assets recognised as at April I, 2021 measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such other intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition al cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are
not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired, The amortisation period and the amortisation methed for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits
embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or melhod, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipicnt obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal, Any gain or loss arising upon derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss. when the asset is derccopnised.

Computer software:

Cost relating to software and software licenses, which are acquired, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of three years or actual period of license, whichever is lower.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they oceur. Bormowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applics a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value asscts. The
Company recognises Jease liabilitics to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Ripht of Use Asseis:

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.¢., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Plant and machinery 8 years

Building 10 years

Land 90/99 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease erm or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section XIII. Impairment of non-financial assets.
Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include
the exercise price of a purchase aplion reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company excreising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the gvent or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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In calculating the present value of kease payments, the Company uses s icremental borrowing rate al the lease commencement daie because the
snterest rate mplieit in the lease is not readily determmable After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabihiues is increased 1o reflect the
accretion of miterest and reduced tor the lease payments made In addition. the carrying amount of fease habilities 15 remeasured i there 15 a
muodification. a change in the Jease term, a change in the Tease payments (¢ g . changes 1 future paymients reswlung from a change i an mdex or rale
used to delermine such lease payments) or a change m the assessment of an opuon o purchase the undetlymg assel

The vost and accumulaed depreciation for right of use assets where the leases gets matured or disposed ol befere matuniy are de-recognssed from
the balance sheet and the resultmg gans/(losses) are included m the statement ol profit and loss within other expenses fother mcome  Lease
tiabilities and right of use assets have been presented as separate g in the balance sheet Lease payments have been clssified as cash used w
linancing acivities

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemgption to its shert-term [eases ol building and plant and equipment (i ¢, those leases thal
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do net contain a purchase optien). except in case of lease contracts with
related paries smce there exist economic incentive for the Company 1o conunue using the leased prenuses {or a perod longer than 11 months and
considering the conract 15 wath the related parties. o does not foresee non-renewal of the lease term for future periods, thus basis the substance and
economic of the amangements, managenent believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease lerms in the arrangements with related parties have been
deternuned considering the period for which management has an econamic incentive Lo use the leased assets (e reasonably certam to use the assel
for the sand period of economuc meentive). Sueh assessment of meremental period 15 based on managenient assessment ol varwous fuctors meludimg
ihe remainmg useful life of the assels as on the date of transitton. The management has assessed period ol arrangement with refated partes as 10
years as al Apnil 01, 2021, It also applics the lease of low-value asseis recognition exemption to leases of plant and equipment that are considered to
be low value Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets arc recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
lerm

Company as a Lessor

[eases n winel the Company Jdoes nol transfer substnteally all the nsks and rewards merdental to ownershup ol an asset are classified us aperatmg
leases Renta) meome ansing 1s aecounted for on a straight-hne basis over the tease terms bl direct eosts mcurred i negobatng and arranging
an operating lease are added 1o the carnvng amount of the leised asset and recogmised over the fease term on the same basis as rental mcome
Cunungent rents are fecogntsed as revenue mobe perod u which they are carned

Leases are classified as linance leases when substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownerslup wanster from the Compans 1o the lessee
Amounts due from lessees under linance leases are recorded as recervables at the Company’s nict invesiment 0 the leases Finance lease mcome 1§
allacmted 1o uccouming periods so as to rellect a constant periodic rate of return on the net imvestment outstanding in respeck ol the lease.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and nel realisable value

1 Raw materials and compuonents, packing materials and stores and spares
Cost meludes cost of purchase and other costs ncurred i bringing the inventonies to their present location and condition. However, materials
and other items held for use in the preduction of nventones are not writen down below cost if the fimshed products in which they wili be
incorporated are expected 10 be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and components, packing materials and stores and sparvs 15
determined on & moving weighted average method. Stores and spares which do not meet the definnion of preperty, plant and euipment are
accounted as invenlories.

] Work in progress, Semi-finished goods and finished goods.

Lower of cost and net realizabie valee Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proporiten of manufaciuning overheads based on
normal operating capacity Cost 15 determined on a moving werghted average bists

o Serap,
Scrap s valuad an net realizable value

Net realizable value 1s the estimated sellng price 10 the ordinary course of busmness. less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NIV,

Impnirment of non - financial assels

The Company assesses, at each reporung date, whether there 1s an indication that an asset may be impaired 11" any indication exists, or when annual
impaiment testing lor an asset s reguired, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An assel’s recoverable amount 15 the ngher ol'an
asset's T value less costs of disposal and its value in use The recoverable amount is determmed far an individual asset. unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assels of groups of assets When the carnying amount of an assel exceeds ns
recaverable amount, the asset 1s considered impaired and s writien down to its recoverable amount

In assessing value m use, the estimated future cash Nows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax discount rate thae tellects current
market assessments of the ime value of money and the risks specific to the asset In determimng tair value less costs of disposal. recent market
{ransactions are taken mio account IT no such wansactions can be dentined. an appropraate valuatton muodel is used These caleulavons are
corroborated by valuation multiples or other avaable fuir value mdicators

The Company bases its impamrment caleulation on detailed budgets and (orecast calculations, which are prepared separately lor each ol the
Company’s CGUs 1o which the imdiidual assets are allocated These budgets and lorecast calculations generally cover a penod of five years For
longer periods, a lang-termy growth rate 15 caleulated and apphed 1o project fusure cash flows after the [Ith year To esinmate cash flow projections
besond periads covered by the most revent budgetsflorecasts, the Company extrapolates cash ow projections in the budget using a steady or
Jechning, growth rate for subsequent years, unless an ncreasing rate can be Justified In any case, thus growth rate does not exceed the leng-lerm
average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or coumtries i which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset s used

Impairment losses of continung operations including impairment on invertories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The impairment assessment for all assets is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previousky recogmsed
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. [f such indication exists, the Company estimates the assel’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previausly recognised impairment loss 1s reversed only it there has been a change in the assumplions used to determine the assel's recoverable
amount since the st tmparrmeni loss was recognised The reversal 1s limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
ampunt. nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined. net of depreciation. had po imparrment loss been recognised tor the assel
m prior years Such reversal is recogrised in the statemem of profit and loss unless the asset 15 carned at a revalued amount, m which case. the
reversal 1s treated as revaluation increase

The Company assesses where climate risks could have a significant impact, such as the reduction of emussion-reduction legisiation that may
merease manutacturing costs These risks m relation to climate-related matters are meluded as key assumptions where they matenally impact the
measure of recoverable amount. These assumnpuons have been included i e cash-fow forecasts im assessing value-in-use amounts

Provisions. contingent liabilitics and contingent assets

i. General
Provisians are recagnised when the Company has a present oblgiation thegal or consiruciine as a result of a past event, 1t 15 probable that an
outilow ol resources embodying economie Benelits will b required Lo settle the obligation and  rehable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligaton When the Company expects some or all o4 provision 1o be reimbursed. fur eximple, under an msurance contricl. the
retmbursement 1s recogmsed as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement 15 virtually certarn The expense relaung 1o 4 provision 15
presented in the stalement of prolit and loss net of any reimbursement

If the effect of the ume value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-1ax rate that refects. when appropriate. the
risks specific to he liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a [inance cost

Onerous contracts

It the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is reeognised and measured as a provision. However,
before a separate provision for an anerous coniract 15 established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has oceurred on assets
dedicated 1o thitt contract

An onerous eontract is o contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.¢, the costs that the Cempany cannol avaid because it has the contract)
of mecting the obligations under the contract exceed the econemic benefits expected (o be received under it The unavoidable costs under a
contract refleet the feast net cost of exiting Irom the contract, which is the lower of the cost of {ulfilling it and any compensition or penalties
arismg from fabure to fulfil it The cost of Mulfilling a contract comprises (e costs that relate directly to the contract (i . both meremental
costs and an allecation of costs direcily related to contract aclivites)

jii.  Contingent liabilities
A contngent Ll is a possible abhigation that anses From past events whuse existenee will be contirmed by the oceurrence or non-
ecctrrence of one or more uncertan fnure events bey und Y control of the Company or i present obhigavon thi 1s net recognesed because
15 not prsbible that un outtlow of resources will be required 1o seitle abligabon A contmgent Labilay also anses 1 extremely rare cases where
there 15 a hiabiiny that can not be recognised because w cannol be measured rehably The Company does not recognise a contmgent habiliy
but discloses its existence 0 the Mnancial statements.

iv.  Contingent assets
Contmgent assels arc nol recognised in the financial statement however, when the reafvzation of income is virtually certain, then the related
assel 1s not a contingent asset and 118 recognition 1s approprate
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XV,

NYL

Retirement and other employce henefits

Provident fund

Reurement benefit m the form of provident fund is a defined comnbution scheme The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
pavable o the provident Tund The Company recognizes contribution payable 1o the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service I the contribution payable 10 the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
already paid. the deficit payable ta ihe scheme is recognized as a liability afier deducting the contribution already paid. I¥ the contnibution already
paud exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an assct 1o the extent that the pre-
payment will lead to , for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash relund.

Defined beunefit plan

‘The Company operates one defined benelit gratiity plan for its employees. The Company's net abhgation 1 respect of’ delined benelit grawnty plan
15 caleulated by estimating the amount of tuture benefit that employees have carned in the curreni and prior periods. discounting that amount and
deducung the Fur value of any plan assets

The cateulanion of defined benefit obligations 15 pertormed annally by @ guahified actuary using the projecied unit eredit method  When the
valvulanion results i a potential assel For te Comprany. the recogmised usset 15l o the present vidue of economie benelits avanlable in the form
of any luture refunds trom the plan or reductions 1 future contributions to the plan ¢Cthe asset cahing’) To caleulate the present value of economic
Dbenelits, consideration is grven to any applcable mmumum funding requirements

Remeasurements of the net defined benefr Liabiligy, which compnse actuanial gans and losses, the return on plan asseis (excluding interest) and the
eilect of the asset ceiling (i any, excludimg nterest), are recognised immedeately m OCT The Company deternings the net imerest expense {income)
on the net defined benefit habihty {asset) for the period by applving the discount rate determined by reference 1o market yields a1 the end of the
reportng period on govermment bonds. This rae 15 apphed on the net defined benet hability (asset), both as determined at the start ol the annual
reporting peried. 1aking anto account any changes in the net defined benefit habihity (asset) during the pertod as a result of contributions and benefit
payments Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benetis plans are recogised in profit or loss

When the benefits ol a plan are changed or wien a plan 1s curtanled, the resulting change n benefit that relates to past service ("past service cost or
“past service gain’) or the gain or Yoss on curtallment 1s recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recopnises gains and losses on the
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs

Short term: employee benefits

Accumulated leave, which is expecled to be utlized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit The Company measures
the expected cost of such absences as the addivonal amount that n expects 1o pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the
reporting date The Company recogmzes expected cost of short-term employee beneln as an expense, when an employee renders the related service

Long term employee benefits

The Company treats aceuniulated feave expected to be carned furward beyond twelve menths, as long-term employee benelit for mgasuremen
purposes Such long-term compensated absences are provided lor based on the acwanal valuation using the projected unit eredit method at the
reporting date Actuarial gans/losses are smmediately t@aken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred The obligabens are presented as
current labilites 10 the balance sheet 1f the entity dues not have an uncondinonal reght to deter the settlement for at least twelve months alter the
repurting date

Financinl instruments

A Tinancial instrument 1s any contract (hat gives nise 1o a financial assen of one entity and a fmancial ability or eguity instrument of arother entny

Fintancial assets:

Initial recognition and measurcment:

Fumancral assets are classihed. at mitial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, [aw value through other comprehensive income
(OCN. and farr value through protit or loss The classification of financial assets at wutial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contraciual
cash low characteristics and the Company’s business model for nanaging them. With the exception of (rade receivables that do nol contain a
significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset a
us fair value plus, n the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contam a
significant inancing companent or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the ransaction price deternined
under Ind AS 113, Refer to the accounting policies in section {1V) Revenue ltom coniracts with customers.

In order for a Mmancial asset Lo be classified and measured at amortised cost or fur value through OCT 1 needs w give nise to cash flows that are
‘solely puyments of principal and imerest (SPPIY on the principal amount outstandmg. This assessment 15 relerred to as the SPPI test and 13
performed at an imstrument [evel. Financial assets with cash Fows that are not SPP1 are classilied and measured at fair value through preiu or [oss.
irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing Iinancial assets refers 1 how i manages s linancial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
busmess model determmes whether cash Mows will result fram coflecung contractual cash Hows, selling the financial assets, or both Financial
assets classilied and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold fimancial assets i order to cotlect
contractual cash Mows while financial assets classifed and measured at Gur value throngh GCT are held wahin a business model with the abjective
of both hioldine to collect contractual cash {lows and selline
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Subsequent measurement

lFor purposes ol subsequent measurement, finanetal assets are classified m Tuur categores

1 Financial assets at amortised cost (debt 1nstruments)

" Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCT) with recycling of cumutlative gains and losses (debl nstrumenis)
w. Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition (equity

v Finoncial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortiscd cost (debt instruments)

A ‘financial asset” 1s measured at the amortised cost 1f bath the lollowing conditions are met

1 The asset 1s held within a business mode! whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting centractual cash flows, and
M Comractual terms ol the asset give oise on speeified dates 1o cash Mows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the
principal amount outstanding

This category is the most relevant to the Company. Alter initial measurement, such lnancial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EiR) methed. Amortised cost is calculated by taking nto account any discount or premim on acqwisittan and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising (rom
impairment are recognised i the profit or loss The Company's fnancial assets at amortised cost includes trade recevables, and security deposit
meluded under other non-current finitncial assets. For more information on recervatles refer note 7th) amd 7t

Financial nssets at fiir value through QCT(FYTOC (debt instrinments)
Actinaneial assel 15 classilied as at the FYTOCT I both of the fullowng criteria are met

| The obyecuve of the business modet is achieved both by collectng comracual cash [ows and selimg the Ninanesal asscis, and

1 The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPE

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCT category are measured inally as well as af each reporung date al tiir value. For debt instruments, w
farr value throupgh OCI, nterest ingome, foreign exchange tevaluabion and impairment losses or reversals are recogmsed n the profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for {inancial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recogmsed i OCL Upan
derecogmuon, the cumulative fawr value clianges recognised in OCH is reclasstfied from the equity to pratit or loss.

The Company has not designated any financial asset (debt nstruments) at FVTOCT

Finameial assets designated at fair value through QCT (equity instriments)

Upon imtial recogmuon, the Company ean elect 1o classify wrevoeably its equity mvestments as equity mstruments designated s fr valoe through
OC| when they meet the definiton of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial [nstruments. Preseintation and are not held for trading. The classitication 15
determined on an nstrument-by-instrument basis. Equuy nstruments which are held for trading and conungeat consideranon recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assels are never recycled to profil or loss Dividends are recopmsed as other income in the statement of profit and
loss when the nght of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits Irom such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of Lhe
finzancial nsset, in which case, such gams are recorded in QCI Equity instruments destgnated at fair value through OCT are not subject 1o imparment
assessiment

The Company has not designated any (inancial asset (eguity nstruments) as at FVTOCI

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fusancial assets at faur value through profit or loss are carned m the balance sheet at tar value with net changes m tarr value recogmised i the
statement of proft and toss

Tlus category includes such financial assets which the Company Ind not irrevocably elected to classily au far value through OCT The Company has
designated investments in mutual funds (debe instruments) m this category

Embedded Derivatives

A denvative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial labilsty or non-financial host, 15 separated from the host and accounted for as a
separate derrvauve 1 the economic charactenstics and nisks are not clusely related W the host, a separate instrument with the same terms. ag the
cmbedded dervative would meet (he defimuon of a dervative, and the hybnd contract 1s not measured at far value through profit or loss
Embedded dervatves are measured at fair value with changes in far value recogmsed in profit or loss Reassessment only accurs af there ss either a
cliange in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash Mows that would otherwise be required or a reclassilication of a financial
assel out of the fair value through profit or loss category

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a fimancial asset or part of a Company of simular Nnancial assets) is prmanly derecognised (1 e
removed [rom the Company's baliance sheet) wlhen

! The rights (o receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or
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1 The Company has transferred its rights to receive eash flows (rom the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a (lurd party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement, and either {a) the Company has translerred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neather transterred nor vetained substantally all the nsks and rewards ol the assct. but
has wransferred control of the asse

When the Company has wransterred its nights to recerve cash {lows trom an assel or has entered mto a pass-through arrangement. it evaluates if and

o what extemt 1t has retamed the nsks and rewards of’ ownership When it has nestber iranslerred nor retained substanually alb ol the nsks and

rewards of the asset, nor ransferred control ol the assel. the Company contmues 1o recogmse the ransfened asset w the exient of the Company's

conunuing involvement In that case, the Company also reeogmises an associted habidny The ransterred asset and the associsted habiluy are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained

Continung involvement that takes the form ot a guarantee over the transterred asset 15 measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
assel and the maximwm amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay

Impairment of financial assets
Further disclosures relatng ro impairment of (inancial assets are also provided in the following notes

| Disclosures for significant assumptions - sce Nowe 32
n Trade recervables and contract assels — see Nae 7 b)

The Compuny recogmses an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt nstruments net held at (air value theough profi or loss ECLs
are based on the difterence between the contractual cash Mows due in accordance with the contrzet and all the cash Tows that the Company expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation af the angmal effective interest rale. The expected cash flows will in¢lude cash 1Tows from the sale off
collateral held or ober credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been o significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that resuli from default events that are possible wathun the next 12-months (a 1 2-month ECL) For those credu
esposures for which there hos been a sigmilicant increase in credit nsk since imtial recogmuion. a loss aHlowance is required lor credit losses
expected over the remuming hife of the exposure. wrespective of the tmng of the default (a b'etime ECL)

For wade recervables and contract assets, the Company applies o sunphiied approach in caleutaung ECLs Theretore, the Company does not rack
chamges v credit nsk, but instead recognises o Juss allowance based on hteime FCLs al each reporing date The Company has established o
pravision matres that 15 based on s histoncal eredit loss experience. adyusied Tor tanward-looking Gactors specefie o the deblors and the ceonomic
environment

The Company considers a financial asset in defaull when contractual payments are 90 days past Jue However, i cenam cases, the Campany may
also consider a financial asset to be i default when internal or external information mdicates that the Company 1s unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in lull before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is wraten ofi’ when there 1s
no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash Mows.

Financial Liabilitics:

Initial recopnition and measurement

Furancial habihties are classilied, avmitial recagmition, as financial batilhiies at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or
as dervatn es designited as hedging instruments in an effective hedpe. as appropriste

All fimancral habilities are recogmised minally at fair value and. in the case of loans and burrowings and payables. net of dicectly atnbutable
transitclion cosls.

The Company's financial [iabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial habilities are classilied n two categories’

i Finangial Lintolities at Mair value through profit or [oss
u Finanenl [rabilities at amertised cost {loans and borrowings)
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Finuncin] linbilitics at fair value through profit or loss

Financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial habtlities held for trading and Ninancial liabilivies designated upon wual
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss

Financial abihties are classified as held for trading tf they are incurred For the purpose of repurchasimg m the near wrm This category also includes
derivative fmancial instruments entered nto by the Company that are not desighated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind
AS 109 Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for rading unless they are designated as effective hedging mstruments

Gaeins or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the prolfit or loss

Financial liabiitics designated upon mitial recegnition at far value through profit or loss are designated os such at the nitial date of recognition, and
only 1f the ereria i Ind AS 109 arc satistied For habilnies designaed as FVTPL, fur value gams/ fosses attnbatable o chimges i owa credn nsk
are recogmzed i OC! These gams/ losses are not subsequently transterred to P&L. Howeser. the Company may transier the cumutabive gan or loss
within equity Al other changes in far value ol such lability are recognased n the siatement of pratin and foss: The Company has net designated
any (inancial habuiity as at Lur value trough prolit or loss

Financial tinhilities at amartised cost {Loans and barrowings)
After iniial recogmition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method Gauns and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the habilities are derecognised as well as tirrough the EIR amortization pracess

Amorused cost is calculated by 1aking into accouni any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR The
EIR amortization 1s included as finance costs in the statement of profil and loss.

Thus category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 14{b)

Perceognition

A [nancial liabitity is derecognised when tie obligntion under the habhity 15 dischiarged or cancelled or expres. Whea an existing financal habihiny
s replaced by another From the same lender on substantrally different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiaily modilied. such an

exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and (he recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised i the statement ol profit and loss
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XVIL

XYL

Reclussification of financinl nssets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and habilities on inital recogation After imitial recognition, no reclassification is made
for fmancial ussets which are equity instrumenis and finaneial habalities For financial assets which are delt instruments, a reclassification 1s made
only i there 1s a change tn the business model for munaging those assets Changes (o the business model are expected 1o be infrequent The
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal ehanges which are significant 1o the
Company’s operations Such changes are evident lo external parties A change in the business madel occurs when the Campany cither begins or
ceases lo perform an activity that is significant to its operations. I the Company reclassifics financial assels, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclssification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business mode!
The Company daes not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following tble shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for

Original elassification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Amortised cost FVTPL. Farr value 15 measured at reclassilication date Difference butween previous
amorbized cost and faur value 1s recognised m profit or loss

FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrymg amount IR s
calculated based on the new gross carrying amount

Amortised cost FYTOCI Fan value s measmed at rechassibicanon date DifTerence between previous
amortsed cost and Gar value 1s recogised m OCT No change in EIR due to
reclassilication

FYTQC! Amortised cost Far value at reclassitication date beconies its new amoriised cost carrving
amount However, cumulative gan or loss in OCI s adjusted against (i value
Conscquently, the asset 15 measured as of it had always been measured at
amortised cost

Original clnssification Revised classification Accounting treatnient

FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No other
adjustment 1s required

FVTQOCI FVTPL Assels continuc 1o be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss previously
recogmzed i OCT 15 reclassified from cyuity to prolit or loss the reclassification
dare

Offsetting of linancial instroinents

Funancial assets and financial habihties are offset and the net amount 1s reported 1 the balance sheet i there 1s a cusrently enlorceable legal fight 1o
otTset the recopmised amounts and there 1s an ntention to settle on a net basis, 1o realise the assets and settte the habalies simultaneously

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet compnise cash at banks and an hand and short-term deposuts with an orginal matuniy of three months
ur less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an mssigniticant ask of changes n value

For the purpose of the statemen of cash Nows, cash and cash equivalents conssst of cash and short-term deposits, as defined ahove, net of
outstanding bank overdrafis as they are consnfered an imtegeal part of the Compan 's cash managenent

Dividend:

The Company recognises a Liabiligy to pay dividend 1o equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised, and the distribution is no
longer at the discretion of the Company As per the corporate laws in India, a distribunien 1s authonised when 1t 1s approved by the sharcholders A
vorresponding amount is recognised direetly in equily.

Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share 15 caloulated by dividing the net profit or loss attnbwable o equity holders ol Company talter deducting preference
dividends and autributable wxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares sutstandimg during the period.

The weighted average number ol equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus 1ssue, bonus clement in a rights
issue, share split, and reverse share split {consolidaton of shares) that have changed the number of eqwiy shares owtstanding. without a
corresponding change i resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluled eamning per share, the net profit or less for the period attributable to equuty sharchalders of the Company and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares
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XXL

XAMIL

Segment Reporting

The Company prepares its segment information in confonnity with the accounting policies adupled for preparing and presenting the [inancial
statements of the Company as whole.

Use of significant accounting judgements, estimates and ussumptions
In preparing the financial statements. management as made judgements and estimates that affect the application of the Company’s accounting
policies and the reporled amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimales.

Jistimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimales are recoghised prospectively.

Information aboul judgements made in applying accounting policies thal have the most significant elfects on the amotnts recognised in the financial
statements are given al note no. 32.

Changoes in accounting policies and disclosures
New and amended standards

Aprit i, 2023
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“*MCA™) has carried out amendmenns (o the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023, The
adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the (inancial statements of the Company.
(i} Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendmenis to [nd AS 8
(ii} Diselosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments (o Ind AS 1
(iil) Deferred Tax related 1o Asseis and Liabilities arising (rom a Single Transaclion - Amendments to Ind AS [2

Muarch 31, 2023
The Ministry of Corporate Alfairs (“MCA™} has carried out amendments 1o the following accounting standards which are effective from April 01,
2022, The adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
{i) Oncrous Contracts — Costs of Fullilling a Contract - Amendments to Ind AS 37

(ii) Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103

(iiiy Property. Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use - Amendments (o Ind AS 16

{iv) Ind AS 10] First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards - Subsidiary as a firsi-time adopter

(v) Ind AS 109 Financial Instnunents — Fees in the “10 per cent” test for derecognition of financial labilitics

(vi) Ind AS 41 Agriculture ~ Taxation in fair value measurements

March 31, 2022
The Ministry of Corporate Alfairs ("MCA™) has carried oul amendments to the following accounting standards which are effective {rom April 01.
2021. The adoption of following mentiened amendments had no impact on the (inancial statements of the Company.

(i) Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS 104 and Ind AS 116
{ii} Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAl

(1ii) Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

(iv) Ind AS 103; Business combination

(v Amendment to Ind AS 103, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

Aprit 041, 2021
The Ministry of Corporate Allairs ("MCA") has carried out amendments 1o the following accounting standards which are effective from April 01,
2020. The adoption of {ollowing mentioned amendments hiad no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

(1Y Ind AS 116: Covid- 19-Relatcd Remt Concessions

(i) Ind AS 103; Business Combinations

{iii) Ind AS | and Ind AS 8: Delinition of Material

{iv) Ind AS 107 and Ind AS 109: Interest Rate Benchmark Relorm
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Interareh Building Products Private Limited
CIN:TU45201DLI9B3PTCOI7029

Notes to Minancial statements as at March 31, 2023
( Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4. Investment properties

Particulars As il As alt Asal
Mareh 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022 April 01, 2021

Cost

Opening balance 314 71 467 74 -

Addians during the year - -

Ihsposals durmg the vear {17.61) {153.03) -

Clusing balance (A) 297.10 314.71 -

Accumulated Depreciation

Opening balance 7.16 - -

Depreciation lor the year 688 947 -

Disposals during the vear [0.40) {2.31) -

Closing balatice (B) 13.64 7.16 -

Net block (C=A-B) 283.46 307.55 467,74

Notes:

(1) On transiwon to [nd AS (1e Aprid 01, 2021), the Company has elected to continee with the carrying value of all nvestment properties measured as per
the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as (the deemed cost of the investient propenies.

L) The Company as per eireular resolution of the Board of Durectors dated January 25. 2021 resolved 10 sell nine residentuail Mats at Metropolis Oy, Plot
A, IEE, SIDCUL Pant Nagar. Unrakband ¢ Cost Rs. 170.64 lakhs as at Apnl 01, 2021)

(1) During the year ended March 31, 2022, eight residental fTus, Pant Nagar (Cost Rs 153 03 lakhs and net block  Rs 1350 72 lakis) were sold at a sale
value of Rs 245 37 lakhs (net of brokerage of Rs 2 11 lakhs) and the Company entered mnto an agreement to seli the pending one resideniial MlaCost Rs
17 61 kikhs, Net Black Rs 17 27 lakhs as at March 31, 2022) for shich advance of Rs 100 Tak{ was receved {Tom prospechive buyers ( Apnl 01, 2021 Rs
Y S0 lakhs). which 1s meluded under Other current liabilinies (refer note-£8) The pending one residenteal at has been sold during the current year ended 31
March 2023 at the consideration of Rs 24 00 lakhs (Cost Rs 7 61 lakhs. Net block Rs [7 21 lukhs)

tiv) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment properties
I*articulars

Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Rental income derived from investment propertes 135 39 121 86
[irect operating expenses {including repairs and mainfenance) arising from investment properties that generating rental (249 (2.49)
Dnect operating expenses {including repaws and maintenance) arising from investment properuies that did not generate - -
rental meome

Profit avising from investment properties hefore depreciation and indirect expenses 132.90 119,37

Depreciation 688 DEY

Profit arising (rom investiment properties before indirect expenses 126,02 109.90

tv] Fuir vitlue

Particulars As at Asat Asat
March 31,2023 Aarch 31,2022 April 01, 2021

Completed Tnvestnient properiies 3671147 3,702 80 3,772 50

Investment properues under construction 3205 30 52 3052

Brealknp:

Particulars RESH As Asat
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 0, 202]

Tivestmeat properties

Far valuc”
Cost

i3 a2

283 16

373332
307 35

180302
167 74

* includig amount of Rs 32 05 fakhs ( March 31,2022 Rs 30 32 lakhs); April 01, 2021 Rs. 30 52 lakhs) pertaming to residental flav winch s unde

construction

# Investment property is subject w charge created against cash credit facilities from banks. (Refer Nale 14(b))

{This page has intennonally been lefi blank)




luterreh Building Products Private Limited
CIN:TAS201DLIYEIPTCOT7029

iNotes to financial statements as at March 31, 2023
(Amount in [xkhs, unless othenvise stated)

4. Investment propertics

These valuations are based on valuations performed by an accredied independent valuer who s a specealist in valuing these types of investment propertees
and 15 a regstered vatuer as defied under rule 2 of Compamies (Registered Valuers and Valuaton} Rules, 2007 A valuation model m accordance with that
recommended by the Internattonal Valuatton Standards Comimittee has been apphed  The valuations perlformied by the valuer are based on active marke
prices. significantly adjusted Jor dilference m the nature, lovaton or condiion ol the specific assets

The Company lias no restricuions on the realisabity of 1ts mvestinent properties and no comractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment
propertes of for repinrs, mamtenance and enhancements.

Description of investment properties, valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation en such investment properties:

Particulars Valuation Significant March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 202!
Methodology  unebservable lnputs
Greater Noida property (Land) - Commercial Comparable listing  Comparable rate Range - Rs 30,000 Range Rs 30,000 Range Rs
method under per sq mi -Rs 45,000 -Rs 45,000 30,000 -Rs
Market Approach Rate used altler  Rate used afler 45,000
covid unpact: Rs  covid impact: Rs Rate used afier
27,000 27,000 covid impact. Rs
25.650
Covid impact** 000% 0.00% 3.00%
Greater Noida property (Building) - Commercial*  Replacement Cost Useful hie 40 Years 40 Years 40 Years
method under Cost (as reassessed by (s reassessed by (s reassessed by
Approach management In an management in an - management in
earlicr years bused earlier years based an carher years
an teclmeal on 1echnical based on
evaluation) evaluation) techmcal
evaluauon)
Depreciaton Method  Stranghn Line Straight Line Straight Line
Method Method Method
Covid impact** 0 00% 0.00% 3 00%
Lavisa properties - Residential Guideline rute  bamd Guidelnes rate Rate used Rs Rateused Rs  Rawused Rs
method under per s mt 1,866 4620 4,620
Markel Approach  Flat Guidelines rate Rateused Rs  Rateused Rs  Rateused Rs
per sq mt 55,130 52,500 52,500
% of completion for 60 N0% 60.00% an Q0%
flar
Pant Nagar flats - Residential Actual Sale Price Covid impact** 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

* meluding electrical fittings & furniture and fixtures of Rs 4 35 [akhs (March 31, 2022- Rs. 3 70 lakhs}
The approaches used to determine lair value of the assets are provided in note 32
** Covid impaet

The valuer has considered the impact el’ Covid at a discount of 5.00% on fair value of the respective assels
However, for assets where gwideling rate methad under market approach 1s used. the impact of covid 15 not censtdered, instead the gudehne/circle rate as on
vitluation dates is considered

{This page has msensonally been lefi hlank)




Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U45201 DL1983PTC017029

Notes to financial statements as at March 31, 2023
{Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Intangible assets

Particulars Computer Total
Softwares
Cost
Balance as at April 01, 2021 17.76 17.76
Additions during the vear 3.33 3.33
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 23.29 23.29
Additions during the year 0.27 0.27
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 23.56 23.506
Amortization
Balance as at April 01, 2021 - -
Amaortization for the year 10.14 10.14
Dispaosals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 10.14 10.14
Amortization lor the year 9.72 9.72
Disposals during the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 19.86 19.86
Net block
Balance as at April 01, 202! 17.76 17.76
Balance as at March 31, 2022 13.15 13,15
Balance as at March 31,2023 3.70 3.70
Notes:

(1) The Company has clected Ind AS 101 exemption and continue with the carrying value for all ol its
intangible assets as its deemed cost (net ol depreciation) as at the dawe of transition { i.e. April 01, 2021).

(ii) All intangibles assels are subject to charge created against cash credit facilitics from banks. {(Refler
Note 14(b))

{ This space has intentionally been lefi blank)




Interarch Building Produets Private Limited

CINIUAR20IDLI983PTCDITD29

Notes to financial statements as xt Mareh 31, 2023

{Amuunt in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6. Right-ol-use assets

Particulars Leasehold Land Buildings Plant and Total

(refer notes below) equipnent
Fair value
Balaunce as at April 01, 2021 4,894.90 $47.88 - 5,342.78
Additions during the vear - - 2928 29.28
Disposals during the vear - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 4,494.90 447.88 ° 29.28 5,372,006
Additions during the vear - - - -
Modification during the year - 23742 - 23742
[Disposals during the year - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,894.90 635.30 19.28 5,609.48
Accumulated Depreciation
Balanee as at April 01, 2021 - - - -
Depreciation lor the year 6572 +1.79 o PHES
Disposals durmg the yvear - - - -
Balaoce as at Mareh 31, 2022 635,72 44.79 N.64 L1115
Depreciation for the vear 6372 7017 380 140,75
Disposals during the year - - - .
Bulatee as at Mareh 31, 2023 131.44 11596 4.50 251.90
Net carrying value
Balance as at April 01, 2021 4,894.90 447.88 - 5,342,778
Balance as at March 31, 2022 +4.829.18 403.09 28.64 5.260.91
Bitlance its at March 31, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24.78 5.337.58

Noles:

(1) On wransition to Ind AS (i.e. April 01, 2021). the Company has elected 1o measure right 1o tise assets at its fair value and use {air value

as 1Ls deemed cost.

(i) Fair value o Lcaschold land are based on valuations performed by an aceredited independent valuer who is a registered valuer as
defined under rule 2 of Companics (Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2¢17. Fair value of leaschold land was determined by using
the below methed. The valuations performed by the valuer are based on active market prices, significantly adjusted for dilference in the
nature. location or condition of the specific assels.
{111) Leasehold lands are subject 1o charge created against cash credit facilities from banks. (Refer Note 14¢b))

Description of leaschold Lands, valuition teehniques used and key inputs to valuation on such leaschold lands:

Particulurs

Yahuation
Methodology

Significant unabservuble Inputs

April 01,2021

Taml Nadu -D141

Comparable Listing method
under Market Approach

Cuomparable rale per aere

Covid impact**

Range - Rs 2 00 -Rs 3 50 lukhs
Raw used after covid impact: (Rs
3.00 lakhs)

5.00%

Famil Nadu -~ F19

Comparable listing mcthod
under Market Approach

Comparable rate per acre

Range: Rs 2,30 -Rs 4,00 lakhs
Rate used afler covid impact: Rs
2.25 lakhs

Covid impacl** 3.00%
Noida Head Office Comparable listing method |Comparable rate per sy mt Rale used after covid impact
under Market Approach (Rs 0.90 Jakhs)
Covid impact** 5.00%
Pantnagar Plant Guideline  rate  method|Alloiment Rate per sq nit Rate used:
under Market Approach Rs 6.500

**The valuer has considered the impact of Covid at a discount of 5.00% on fair value of the respective assets.

The approaches used 10 determine fair value of the assels are provided in note 32

Ly I nght to use assets deasehold land ) were measured wsmg the cost model. The carnveng amounts would be as lollows

Net boolk value

Mareh 31,2023

Mareh 31, 2022 April (41, 2021

Cost 546 58 346 58 346 58
Accwmnulated depreciation 196 69) .71 (84 74y
Nel carrying amotint 449.89 435.87 461.84

-~




Interareh Building Produets Private Limited
CIN:U45201 DLIYEIPTC M 7029

Netes 1o financinl statements as at March 31, 2023
(Amuunt in lnkhs, vnless otherwise stated)

7. Financiul asset
7¢n). Investment

Particulars Asat Asat Asat

Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Nou current
Investment in government securitics (at amortised cosr)
National Savengs certficate* - 158 038
Quoted Investments
Investment in mutual funds {at Tir value through peofic or loss)
Y.88,737.72 (March 31, 2022 Mil, April 61, 2021 Nil) umts of HIDFC Nifty SDL Index 100 26 - -
Fund Regular Growth of Rs 10/~ cach
9.8:4.231 82 (March 31, 2022- Nil, April 01, 262F Nil) units of ICICI Prudential Nilty 100 26 - -
SDL Index Fund Growth of Rs. 10/- cach
970211 84 (March 31, 2022 NIl April 01, 2021 Nil) units of Nippon India Nifiy AAA 100.19 - -
P5U Bond Plus SDL Index Fund - Growth Plan of Rs. 10/- each
9.65,762 03 (March 31, 2022 Nil, Apnl 01, 2021 Nil) units of Tata Crisil-IBX Grft Index 100 0y - -
Fund- Regolar Plan Growth of Rs. 10/ cach
9.57.898.27 (tMarch 31, 2022 Nif, Apnl 01, 2021. Nil) unnts of Aditya Birla Sun Lile 100.22 - -
Nifiv SDL. Plus PSU Bond Fund Regular Growth of Rs. 10% ench
Total 501.02 0.58 (.38
Agpregate book value of quoted investments 501.02 - -
Aggregale market value of quoted investments (note 38) 501,02 - -
Appregate valiie of unquoted investments - 038 058
*The above securny were lien with szles tax and other government department
A{biti) Trade receivables

Asag Asat Asat

Favticulars

Alarceh 31, 2023

Mareh 31, 2022

April 01, 2021

Nou current

I'rade recenvables _ 383704 2745 1) 3,328 938
Tutul 383704 2,795.11 3.328.98
Current

Trade receivables 15.870.75 8.570.13 06.872.18
Total 15,870.75 §.570.13 6,872.18
Break up of security details

Trade receivables

Non Current

Seeured, considered good - - -
Unsecured. considered good 383704 2,795 11 332898
Unseeured. considered doubtiul 164 73 140.18 270,86
Current

Secured. considered pood - - -
Unsceured, considered good 15.870.73 8,570.13 6,872.i8
Unsccured, considered doubtful 653.13 1.643 40 1.193.81
Totwl (A) 20,527.67 13.148.82 11.665.83
I pitirment Allswanee Gallowance for bad and doubeful debes)

Nun current

Trade reeevables which have signeficant incicase m credit rnish . . 1140 82)
Tawde recenvables - credn impaced 11ed T3 [REIRE S 1130 04
Current

Trady recervables which have sygneficant increase m credit nisk - (1.213 60) 81130
Trade recervables - erednt impaired (0635.13) (429 80) (382 50
Total (B) (8149.48) {1.783.58) (1464.67)
Totxl trade receivables (A-B) 19,707.79 11,365.24 10,201.16




Interareh Building Produets Private Limited

CIN:U45201 DLIYB3PTCOI702Y

Notes to financinl statentents as at Mareh 31, 2023

(Amount in lukhs, unless otherwise stated)
Trade receivibles Ageing Schedule

As at March 31,2023

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payntent Total
Non current | Current but| Less than | 6 months | 1-2 vears 2.3 More than
but not due ] not due 6 months | -] year vears 3 vears
(¥ Undesputed Trade receivables - 383704 68129 13453.39 173 60 181 14 - 61293 19,439 39
considered pood
() Undisputed Trade Receivables - 164 75 2923 386.24 20 34 778 - - 808 36
credit unprared
(un Disputed Trade Recevables - - - - - 36840 - - 268 40
considered zood
1v) Dsputed Trade Recevables - - - B - 1152 - - 1152
credit impinred
Totul +,001.7¢ 710,54 14.239.,63 443,94 468.84 - 612,93 20,527.67
As al March 31,2022
Particulirs Qutstanding Tor fullowing peviods from due dute of payment Tatal
Non current | Current but| Less than | 6 months { 1-2 years 2-3 More thitn
hut not due | not due 6 months | -1 vear venrs 3 vears
1) Undisputed Trade receivables - 2.795.11 7787 813771 284 77 63 244 4 35 - 11,365 25
considered zood
{11} Undisputed Trade Recervables - - - 1279 17.18 78 46 6.4 256171 141 38
sigmificant increase in credit risk
(1) Unehisputed Trade Reccivables 1410.18 391 408 11 14 28 327 023 - 569.98
- eredit impaired
t1v) Disputed Trade Receivables - - - 300 100 2813 11145 926 34 107202
sigmficant increase in credit nisk
Total 2,935.29 81,78 8,563.061 317.23 175.20 122.66 953.05 13,148.82
As at April 01, 202]
Particulars Ouistanding for following periods from due date of payment Tutal
Non current | Current but] Less than | 6 months | 1-2 vears 2-3 years More thun
hut pot due [ not due Gmonths | -1 vear 3 vears
(1) Undhsputed Trade recevables - 332898 683 83 315923 290 33 148 39 93 82 - 8,706 61
consndered good
Ly Undispated Trade Receivables - 140 82 - B2 43 027 RUEY - -4 88 279 20
significant inerease i eredet risk
() Undisputed Trade Recewvables 130.04 %79 201.54 1134 580 367 58.81 43798
- eredit mipred
Lv) Despiied Trade Receivables - - - 732 - 21178 27346 - 404 35
considered good
(v} Disputed Trade Receivables - - - - - 92 40 228 56 35197 672 93
signsficant increase in credit risk
(vi) Dasputed “Trade Recewvables - - - 036 - 827 10 68 5524 74 56
credit ampaired
Tatal 3.599.84 712.64 5,462.88 301.94 507.44 610.19 470.90 11.665.83
No trade or other receivable are due from directors or ather ofticers of direclor 1s a partner, a director or a member
All current assers {including wrade reccivables) are subject to cliarge created against eash credit facilities from hank. (Refer Nowe 14(h))
T()Gi) Contracl assets
| Asat Asat Asal

April 01, 2021

Current
Contract asswls

-Unbilled revenue 2792 094 2124 00 1.000 91
Tutal (A} 2,742,594 2.124.00 1.660.91
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Contract assets - credit impaired - - -
Totul (B) - - -
Tutal contract assets {A-DB} 2,792.94 2,124.60 1.660.91




Interarch Building Products Private Limited

CIN:U43201 DLIYBIPTCO1702Y

Notes to finnein) statements as at March 31, 2023

{Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stuted)

Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expecied eredit losses of trade receivables und contraet assets:

Particulurs Asat As ut Asnt
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022 _ April 01, 2021
Tmpairment Allowanee (aHlowance for badl and doubtful debts)
Opening Balance 1,783 58 1.464 67 881 34
Provision for expected credit losses tnet) 196370 31891 583 13
Closing Balince 819.88 1,783.58 1,464.67
ANl current assets (including contract assets) are subject to charge created against cash eredut faciities from bank. {Refer Note 14(b))
7ic) Cash nnd cash equivalents
Barticulars Asat As al Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Balunees with hanks:
= On gurrent accounts 097 781 20 98
- On cash credil accounts 42107 91937 31206
Depusins with onginal matunity of less twn three months™ 3430 |4 3077 13 16t D1
Chegues dialis an hand - I .
LCash un hand K 177 537
Total 5.866.32 401 0,48 4Y8.62

* I'ived deposits margin money deposit of Rs 99 13 [akhs (March 31,2022 Rs 28 13 lakhs, Apnl 01, 2021 Nil) have been held as margin moncy agmnst

1ssuance of bank guaranice and letier of credits provided in favour of government authorties. customiers and supphiers.

All current assets {including cash and cash equivalents) are subject to charge created aainst cash eredit facilities from bank. (Refer Notw 14ibn

7(e)(i) For the purpose of the statement of eash fows, eash and eash equivalents camprise the following:

Particulars Asat Asut Asal
Marel 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022 April 01, 2025
Balances with banks :
- On current acgounts 1097 731 2098
= On cash credit accounts 421.07 919 37 31206
eposits with origmnal matunity of less than three months 5430 14 307713 160Ul
Cheques'drafts on hand - 340 .
Cash on hand 4.14 277 537
Totul 5.866.32 4.010.18 498,62
Te)ii) Changes in linbilities arising from financing netivitics -
Particulars April OF, Cash Changesin New leases/  Interestonlease  Afarch 31,
2022 flows Gairvalues  Modification linbility 2023
{net)
Current hurrowngs [nate 13ty 193 74 774 30 - - - 268 10
Non Current horrowsngs (including curcent maturities from long 142 38 2789 - - - 170 27
term barrowings [naie 14(b)]
[1.cuse habilines Juote [41a)] 44857 (113400 - 23742 61 84 63443
Total linbilitics from fnaneing activities 784.69 084,85 - 237.12 0184 1,772,380
Particulars Aprilin, Cash  Changes in New Interest on lease  Nareh 31,
021 Nows lwir values [eases linhility 2022
{net)
Current borrowings [note 14{b)] 126 61 6713 - - - 193 74
Nuon Corrent botrowings (mcluding current maturities {rom long 6382 73.56 - - - 142 38
term borrowings [note 14(b))
L.ease habiiies [note 14ia)] 44788 {69.78) - 2928 41.19 448 57
Tutal liabilities from financing activitics 643.31 70.91 - 29.28 A41.19 784.69
70y Bank balances other than eash aud eash equivalents
Particulnrs Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2032 Apyril 01, 2021
Deposits with remaming maturity of less than twelve months * 6,054 44 5,165.37 6,198 53
Total 6,054.44 5,165.37 6,198.53

* Fised deposis . margmn meney deposit of Rs. 495444 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs 3.388 17 lakhs, April 01, 2021 Rs 155452 Takhs) have been licld as
margn money agaist 1ssuance of bank guarantec and letter of eredus provided 1 favour of government authonties. customers and supplters and of Rs N
(March 31, 2022 Rs 0 26 lakhs, Aprit 01,2025 Rs Nulyhave been pledged with sales tax amthoriboes

Fived depusits are subject W charge created against cash credit frgibrtses rom bank (Reder Note 1rhh
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F{e) Loans

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

Current (Unsecured considered good) T T

Loan Lo coplovees 37463 330606 260

Total 27.63 33.66 26.20

All current assels (including loans) are subjeet to charge created agaimst cash credat facihnies from bank (Refer Note 14(b))

7(N Other finaneinl assets

Particulars Asat As at Asal
Mlareh 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 01, 2021

Nuon-current (Unsecured
considered pood)

Deposits with banks with remameng maturity of more than twelve months # 066 84 31313 035
Secuny deposis
- Related parties {refer note 36) #4 18.00 1800 1800
- Others 73.00 75 56 76 42
Total 159.84 406,69 04.07
Current (Unsecured considered gootd)
Interest acerued on bank deposits and others 79.87 3835 5011
Security deposits
- Related parties (refer note 36) #+ - - 003
- Uthers R 980 3208
Insurance clinm receivable - 4009 -
‘Tagtl 101.83 118,24 91.33

= Fised deposits * nrrgin money deposit of Rs 66553 fakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs 312,13 lakbs. April 01, 2021, Ny have been held as margin money agamst
issuance of bank guaraniee and [ewter of credits provided in favour of government authorities, cusloniers and supphers and o Rs 0 28 fakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs

NiL. Apnl 01, 2021, Rs. 0.25 lakhs) have been pledged with sales tax authorities

Ak current aissets are subject lincluding other financials assets) to charge created aganst cash credit fucilities Irom bank. {Reler Nate F4(b))

{4 Security Deposit from related parties includes @~

Particulars As it Asat Asat
Murel 31,2023 dareh 31,2022 April 01,2021
Dues from partnership firm {Intertec) in wlueh the Company's director is a partner
Non currenl 18 00 1800 1800
Current - - -
Dues from dirgciors
Non current - - -
Current - - 003
Breakup of Financinl Assets cavried at amortised cost
Particulars Asat Asat As at
March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Investment in government securilies [refer note 7(a)] - 038 05§
Trade Recewvables [reter note 7(bl(1)] 19.707 79 11.365 24 10,201 16
Cash and Cash equivalent [refer note 7ic)] 5806 32 401048 498 62
Bank bulances other than cash and cash equavalents [refer note 7(d)] 0,059 44 3,165 37 6,198 53
1 vans [refer note 7ie)) 1703 3366 2620
Other Finangial assets [refer note 7(01 261 67 53193 186 00
Tatal 31,917.85 21,100.26 17,111.09
8. Tncome tnx assets [ (linbilities)
Particulars Asat Asat Asal
Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Opening balance 586440 727.99 967 60
Add Tases pad oset of refunds) 1977.78 80273 147.27
Less Tavy expense {2,376.33) (940,321 (386.88)
Closing balance 187.83 586.40 727.99
Non current 1ax assets (net) 187.85 139.30 72799
Current tax assels (net) - 560.06 -
Liabalities for current tax (net) - (112.95) -
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Y: Other non=-current nssels

Particulars Asat As utt As at
March 31,2023 Muareh 31,2022 April U1, 2021
U'nsecwred, considered Food
Advances for Property, plantand equipment 3i294 40.75 1337
Prepaid expenses 712 11.83 1800
Balances with statutonv/government authoritics 88.26 1.1 29 3699
Total 408.32 193.87 68.36
110, Inventorics
Particulars Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
LA mventorres exceprt for sorapr are valtied an the lower of cost e net realiabde vahae
Raw materials (In ransit of Rs b4 21 eMarch 31,2032 Rs 35899 Apnl 0F, 2021 Rs 2609 340 8466 29 971373 6564 97
Work m progress 2021 34 1.4%6 37 1,646 36
Senu fimshed goods 238327 1.904.67 1.288.70
Fimshed goods (In teansut of Rs 3.06 { March 31, 2022, Rs 4,36, (April 01,2021: Rs. Nil)) 19.02 19.56 2444
Packing materials 42.02 39.96 37.76
Stores and spares 230.01 224 .98 21389
Scrap 35.63 1347 15063
Totil 13,697.58 13.412.76 999177
All current assets (ncluding inventortes) are subject to charge ereated against cash credu facilities from bank (Refer Note 14ib))
LT, Qther current assets
Particulars As at Asuat Asal
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 02, 2021
U'nseeured, and considered pood exeept where otherwise stated
Prepaid expenses 160,71 143.58 178.69
Balances with stawtory/gavernment authorities
= VAT/ Entry tax recoverable 107 95 141 59 19702
- Others 793 50 565 35 50272
Advance o employees 972 47 765
Advanees for gouds & services
- Lunsidered gaud LELR M 5111 94 2y 32
= Considered doubitul - 4 s 4363
L ess Allowance Tu doubtfyl advances - 11 45 13163
Total 1,960.33 1,359.17 1,135.40

All current assets are subject to chacge created against cash credu Mcibues from bank (Refer Note 14(bn

(Thes space has mtentnatly been teft blunk)
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12: Equity share capital
Particulars Asat Asat Asal
greh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 81, 2021

Authorised:
20,000,000 (Mareh 31, 2022: 20,000,000, April 01, 2021: 2.000.00 2.000.00 2.000.00
20.000.000) equiny shares of Rs.10 each ‘ ‘

Issucd, subscribed and fully paid up:
1.50.,00,600 (March 3, 2022: 1,50,00,600, April 01, 2021: 1.500.06 1,500.06 1,500.06
1.50.00.600) cquity shares of Rs.10 cach

Total 1,500.06 1.500.06 1.500.06

a. Reconeiliation of the shares outstanding at the beginuning and at the end of the reporting year

Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023 As at Mareh 31, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Fquity shares

Balance at the beginning of the vear 1.50,00.600 1.500.06 1.50.00.600 1.500.06

Balance at the end of the vear 1,50.00,600 1,500.06 1,50,00,600 1.500.00

b. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of cquity shares having par vilue of Rs 10 per share (previous year value of Rs 103 ach holder of cquuy shares 18
entitled o one vote per share. The hoelders of equity shares are entitled to recewve dividends as declared Urom tme © ime

In the event of liquidation of the Compans, all preferential amuounts, o any. shall be diseharged by the Company The remaining assets ol the Company. shali
b distnibuted 1o the holders ol equity shares in preporlion to e number of shares held to the tasal equity shares outstanding as on that date

Une of the sharcholder of the Company viz, Mis OIH Mauritius Limited (formerly known as Mfs Indivision India Pariners) has the following additional
rights as per the Share Subscription Agreement and Sharcholders Agrecment namely:-

a Participate in any contract which involves an amount in excess of Rs.100.00 lakhs which is outside the ordinary course of business.

b Commencement or settlement of litigation where ihe amount involved is above Rs.100.00 lakhs in a single ¢laim in any particular financial year:

¢. Vote in meetings on decisions wherc decision regarding divestment of or sale of nssels. investments, lease, license or exchange or pledge in any other way
proposing 1o Jispose ofl any assels or undertaking ol the Company excepl lor those ransactions which are in the ordinary course of business and those
which have specificatly been contemplated under the Transaction documents.

d Participate w decision regarding commencement of businessiuni/division outside lndia.

¢ Participate wn decisions regarding revision in the salarics/compensation paid Lo the directors ol the Company, including the Promoters.

[, Participate in the appointment or removal of the Chiel Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Offficer, and the Chief Operating Officer ol the Company

# Participate m decision regarding Tnitial Public Offering (IPO) by the Company and appointment of merchant bankers for an IPO.

¢. Terms of Exit of %/s OIH Mauritius Limited ((formerly known as M/ Indivision [ndia Partners {Investor)

As per the Sharchelders Agreement entered on December -1 2007 betwegn Mes OTH Mauntus Tumied {formerly known as M/ Indnision Indi Parters).
Maurigus, @ public company hmited Iy shares with tmited ile, Interarch Butkding Products Private ated CComprny') and Promaters gnamely Mr.
vrvmd Nanda, Mr Gautam Sun. M/s Tapan Associates Private Limited and M 1GS Floldiags Private Lanined and therr respective successors and
pesmited assigns) (collectively reterred as "Parties™); and Share Subscription Agreement emered on even date. the Company had issued 1.00.000 cquity
shares of Rs. 100 cach ‘& premium of Rs.9.900 cach. As on date. Indivision India Partners olds 2.000.000 cquity share ol Rs. 10 cach after split und bonus
shares.

‘The Tnvestor shall have the exit rights as below:

During the exit period (6 months commencing from the expiry ol the 1P0 Period). tnvestor shall have the right 1o sell the entive shares (o a third pasty
mutually agreed upon by the Parties. The Parties hereby agree and acknowledge that they shail take ali reasonable steps to ensure that a wutually acceptable
tlurd party purchaser acquires the Investor Shares on terms and conditions acceptable to the Investor

The nght of the Inveslor, durng the Exit peried shall also include the right to cause the Company 1o take all necessary steps and co-operale (o facilnate the
{nvestor exil by way of an Offer for Sale {OFS) of the shares and sceking a listing of the Company on the exchange(s). The Investor shall have the right in
privrity to offer all the Investor Shares for sale in the OFS of the Company.

ey




Interarch Building Produets Private Limited
CIN:U45201DL1983PTCO17029

Notes to finnocial statements as at March 31, 2023
(Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified, that during the Exit period. the promaoters right of first offer stand suspended.

Where the Investor requires prior legal, gavernmental or regulatory consent. for disposing the Investor Shares then. not withstanding any other provision of
(lus Agreement. that party shall only Dbe obliged to acquire the shares once such cansent oF approval is ebtaned and ihe partes shall use their reasonable

endeis ours o obtain any such required approvals.

Any period within which the transfer of the Investor Shares has to be completed shall be extended by such further period as is necessary lor the purpose of

ubtunmng the above approvals.

In the event that upon the completion of the EXit period. the partics have not been suceessiul in finding a third party purchaser or conchuding the OFS, then
for the period extending (rom alier the completion of the Exit perod to the next 6 months (Phase 1), the Tnvestor will have the right o sell only to the
Promuoter or cause the Company to buy back and the Promoter or the Company., as the case may be, will huve an vbligation to purchase or buy back all the
[avestor Shares at the fair market value delermined in accordance with the procedure as mutually agreed and set out in the Sharcholder's Agreement.

The purchase of the Investor Shares by the Promoters andfor the Company will be completed in Phase 1.

Nuotwithstanding, the other provisions of the Sharcholder's Agreement, in the event that the Company and/or the Promoters il to purchase the Investor
Shares during Phase 11, as contenplated under the Sharcholder’s Agreement, the Lavestor shall have the right to sell the Investor Shares Lo any third party.

. Details of sharehelders holding more thun 5% shares in the Company as pi year end

Particulars As at Mareh 31,2023

No of shares % of holding

As at March 31,2022

No of shares

% of hiolding

Undnasion [ndia Pariners

held held
Mr. Gautan Suri 47.75.300 31.83% 47.75.300 3183%
Mr Arvind Nanda 59.20.200 3947% 59.,20,200 310.47%
Ms OIE Mauritius Linited ((formerly known as M/s 20.00.000 i3.33% 20.00.000 13.33%

As prer regords ol the Company. mneluding its register of sharcholdersimembers and other declarations received trom sharcholders regarding benelicial

miterest, above sharcholding represents both fegal and beneficial ownership ol shares

¢. Details of shares held by promoters
As at 31 March 2023

Promaoter Name No. of shares Change No. of shares % of Total % Change
at the beginning during at the end Shares during
of the year the year of the year the year
Mr. Gautam Suri 47,75.300 - 47.75,300 31.83% -
Mr. Arvind Nanda 59.20.200 - 39.20,200 39.47% -
Mrs Shobhna Suri 6.00.100 - 6.00,100 4.00% -
Mr Ishaan Suri 5.99.900 - 5.59.900 4.00% -
Mes Taipan Associates Pvt Lud 5.80.000 - 5.80.000 387% -
M/s 1GS Holding Pyt Lid 5,25,000 - 5,235,000 3.50% -
Total 1.30,00,500 - 1,30,00,500 86.67% -

Asat 31 March 2022

Promoter Name

Nao. of shares
at the beginning
ol the vear

Chanpe
doring
the vear

No, ol shares
at the end
of the vear

%% of Total
Shares

% Change
during the year

Mr Ciawtam Sun

47.75.300

47753300

31 83%

M Anvnd Nanda 39,20.200 - 59.20.200 39 4 T% -
Mrs Shobhna Suri 6,00.100 - 6.00.100 4.00% -
Mr Ishaan Sun 5.99.900 - 5.99.900 1.00% -
M/s Tuipan Associates Pvi Lud 5,80,000 - 5,80,000 3.87% -
Mis IGS Holding Pvi Lid 5,25,000 - 5,25,000 3.50% -
Total 1,30,00,500 - 1,30,00,500 86.67% -

(This space has mtentionally been left blank)
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As at 31 March 2021

Promoter Name

No. of shares Change No. of shares % of Total % Change
at the beginning during at the end Shares during the year
of the vear the vear of the vear

Mr. Gautam Suri 47,75,300 - 47,75,300 31.83% -
Mr. Arvind Nanda 59.,20,200 - 59,20,200 39.47% -
Mrs Shobhna Suri 6,00,100 - 600,100 4.00% -
Mr Ishaan Suri 5.99,900 - 5,99,900 4.00% -
M/s Taipan Associates Pvi Ltd 5.,80,000 - 5.80,000 3.87% -
M/s IGS Llolding Pvt Lid 5,25.000 - 5,25,000 3.50% -
Total 1,30,00,500 - 1,30,00,500 86.67%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received from sharcholders regarding beneficial
interest, above shareholding represents both legal and benelicial vwnership of shares.

g. Agaregate number of bonus shares issued, share issued for consideration other than eash and shares bought back during the period of five
vears immediately preceding the reporting dafe.

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2018

Number Number Number Number Number
Equily shares allotied as fully paid bonus shares - - - - 75.00,300
13: Other equity
Particulars Asat Asat As at
March 31. 2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Equity Components of Guarantee 3490 4255 -
Reserves and surplus
Securitics premium account 9,149.97 9.14997 9,149.97
General rescrve 5,659.12 5,659.12 5.659.12
Retained carnings 23.533.35 15.480.21 13.669.14
Total 38.427.84 30.331.85 28.478.23
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Equity Components of Guarantee®
As at April 01 4255 -
Addition during the year 42.35 42.55
As at March 31 §4.90 42.55
Securities premium account
As at April 01 9,149.97 0.149.97
As at March 31 0.149.97 9,149.97
General reserve
As at April 01 3.659.12 5,659.12
Add: transfer during the year -
As at March 31 5,059.12 5.659.12
Retained earnings
As at April 01 15.480.21 13.814.86
Changes in accounting pelicy or prior period errors {net of tax) - (143.72)
Restated as at April 01 15,480.21 13.669.14
Net profit for the year 8.146.24 1.713.36

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
Remeasurements of posi-employment beneftt obligation, nel of tax {92.60) 97.71

As at March 31 23.533.85 15,480.21

* The fair value of the guarantee received by the Company from promoter dir o] 0 B d limit considered as
contribution by Sharcholders and credited (o the cquity. ~ o

{Reler note 36(b}}
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14, Financial linbilities

144i1). Lease lisbilities

Particulars Asat As at Asat
March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Non- Current (refer note 34) 577.74 414.75 419 68
Current (cefer note 343 56.70 33 82 28 20
Tutal 634.44 448.57 447.88

Refer note 40{¢) for maturity profile of lease liabihties

14(b): Burrowings

Particulurs Effective Muturity/ Asat As ut As at
interest Repayment ternls Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
ratef¥o)

Non current borrowings

Seeured
Vehicle loans 680-10.7% As per repayment 110.56 101.92 12.60
terms of 1oan
schedule
Tota! 110,56 §01.92 12.60
Curtent borrowing
Seewred
Cash credu lrom banks Reler below Un demand N5 10 25T 3661
note Vi

Current maturities of long-term borrowwigs

- Vehicle loans 59.71 40 46 56 22
Unsecured
Rorrawmygs (rom related parties (refer note 36) Refer below On demand 20.00 165 Q0 90.00

nee 3

Tatal 1,027.81 234.20 182,83

Reter note 10{c) for maunty profile of borrowings
Noles
1 Cash eredu facilities from banks arc secured by
{a} Ferst pari=passu charge by way of hypotheeation of entive current assets including book debts and inventory of the Company, both present and future

(b These tacthnes. are further collaterally secured by first pan-passu charge over the entire movable fised asscts meluding plant & machinery ncluding
wtangible sssets (except vehicles charged exclusively to the financer). both present and future, of the Company

() Cash credu fagihues from all banks are secured by charge by way of equutable mortgage on mmovahle properues soated st ta) Plot No B-30. Sector-
37 Nunda, Unar Pradesh cowned by the Campany). (b Plut No B-33. Seetar-37. Nuada, Ut Pradesh towned by M s tntertec (Parinersiep Frrmp (c) Plot
Nu 28A. Udyoyg Vihar. Greater Nowda. Unar Pradesh. being smmos able properbies tow ned by M s Intertee (Pasinersiip ) and (dilat Ne -1 1,
SIFCOT. ndustnal area, Snperumbudur, Chennas. ‘Famul Nadu, (owncd by the Company o] Khista no S276-A. Village Kisanpur. Pagana Rudrapur. Tehsel
Kichiha, Jita Udham Smgh Nagar, Uarakhand towned by the Company ;. 41 Plot No.24, Udvoy Vibas. Greater Nonda, Ustar Pradeshion ned by the
Company) (2} Plotno 14 & 14A, Sector-2. Pant Nagar, Udham Singh Nagar. Uttarakhand(owned by the Company ). and {h) Plot no F 19, SIPCOT Industrial
Park, Snperumpudur, Kanchipuram (TN} {owned by the Company)
(3 Further, secured by (a) personal guarantee of two directors of the Company to all Banks (namely Mr. Arvind Nanda and Mr. Gautam Suri) and (b)
corporate puarantee of Ms Interlec (Partnership Firm).
{¢) In respect of working capual loans, quarterly returns or sialements of curtent assets filed by the company with banks are i agreement wath the books of
ilecounts
13 The cash crednt facihines are repayable on demand and curry mterest 4 750%patw 11 10% pa (March 31,2022 7 800 pa 10 10.95% p.a. Apnl 01,
2021 1005% 1w 11.50% p.a b

3 Vehicles loans amounung to Rs 170 27 lakhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 142 38 lakhs Apnl 01,2021 Rs 68 82 lakhs) are secured by hypethecaston of underlving

vehneles
3 Unsecured Eoan from directors are repayable on demand and canry interest }@ 6 00°0 (dMarch 31. 2022 6.00%, April 01, 2021 6 00%)

1 The Company has not defaulied on any luan payables
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Fd{c): Tratde payables

Farticulars Asat Asut As al
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021
Trade pavables (mcluding acceptances)
- lm.n! outstanding Jues olfmu:ro enterprises and small enterprises 907 10 73423 676 35
refer note below for details of dues 10 micro and small enterprises)
- total outstanding ducs of creditors ather than nucro enterprises and 943891 731N 6,363 29
small gnterprises
Total 10,366,01 8,045.95 7.039.84
Trade payables Apeing Schedule
As at March 31, 2023
Particulurs Quitstunding for following periods from due dute of paviment Tutal
Unbilled Not Due | Lessthan | 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years More than
does 1_yenr 3 yeurs
Tatal vutstanding dues of micro enterpnses and 45 b4 228.34 334 48 478 4284 5102 y07 10
small enterprises
Total owstanding dues of creditors other than 101474 1,829.60 | 63717 107 19 18.81 65.43 5,409.94
miero enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of nuero enterprises and small - - - - - - -
CRLCTPrises
Disputed dues ol creditors other than micro - - 781 1791 101 19 24 4897
enterprises and small enterprises
Totd 1.4160.38 20579487 6910,46 129,88 65.00 135.69 1036641
As nt March 31, 2022
Particnlits Outstunding for [ollowing perigds from due date of payment
Unbilled Not Due | Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 yeurs Mlore than Total
dues 1 year 3 years
Total owstanding dues of nucro enterprises and 4405 M2 231 81 63.23 39.45 1295 734 23
small enterprises
Taal outstanding dues of creditors other than 979.25 470445 125004 1193 112.24 70 37 722818
micio enterprises and small entetprises
insputed dues ol micro enterprises and small - - - - - - -
CNLCFpTIses
Insputed dues of crediors other than nucro - kDI 2098 342 - 19.83 8344
enterprises and small enterpnses
Total 1,023.30 | 5.086.40 | 1.502.83 178.58 151.69 103.15 8.045.95
As at April 01,2021
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of pavment Total
Unbilled Not Due | Less than | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than
dues 1 year 3 vears
Total outstanding ducs of mucro enterprises and 124.40 219.55 186 41§ 7212 4407 - 676.55
snull enterprises
Total oustandimg dues of creditors other than 133415 2355228 ll6H6 195 32 us 87 3393 6,331 33
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Thsputed dues of mucro enlerprses and small - - - - B - -
enterprises
Dusputed ducs of credums other than micro - 03y 836 - 15 61 720 N7
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 1.458.65 ) 2.802.42 | 2,311.63 26744 158.55 41.15 7.039.84

Trade pavables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 0 - 45 davs.
(Thus spuce has wtentonally heen teft hlank)
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1{dl). Other Bnancial linkilities

Particulars Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
Pavable on purchase of Property, plant and cquipment * 2.36 17.36 37.14
!:.mploycc dues 1,142.31 1.050.23 932.20
Secunty deposits 3942 3042 3842
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 132 20 123
Tntesest aectued but not dae on borrowings 041 077 061
Totd 1,186.44 1.109.98 1,004.60

*Includes dues of micto emerprises and small enterprises amountang Rs Nil(Maich 31,2022 Rs 4 3% lakhs. Apnb 01, 2021 Rs Nily

Break up of fingneial liabilitivs earried ot amortised cost

Particulars Asat Asat Asat

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 April 01,2021
{.ease labihties (non-current) [refer note 14{a)] 57774 44 73 419 68
Rorrowinys tnon current} [refer note 14(b1] 110 36 101 92 1260
Rotrowings (current) [refer note 14(b)] 1,027 8i 23420 18183
L.ease babwlities (current} [refer note 144a)] 3670 3332 2820
Trade pavables |refer note 14(¢)| 10,366 01 804595 7,039 84
Other financia! habilives [refer nate 14td)] 1,186 44 1.109 98 1.009 60
Total fingneinl liabilities earricd at amortised cost 13,325.26 9,940.62 8.692.75
Note:

Details of dues ta Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

On the basss of the information and records available with management, details of dues to micre and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act. 2006
are as below
Particulars Asnt Asat Asat
Aarch 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

I The prineipal amount and interest due thereon remaning unpan o any supplies as a he
end ol accuunting ver

- Puncipal amoumt * Y7 10 734 81 076 35
~ Interest thereon - - -

3 The amount of mterest pud by the buyer in terms of sceian 16 of the MSMED Act

2006 atong wiih the amounts of the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appomied - - -

Wiy duning gach accounting year

1 “The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay m makig paynent

ywhich have been paid but beyond the appointed day dunng the year) bul without addng - - .
the interest speciiied under the MSMED Act 2006

1 “The nmount of nterest accrued and semaining unpand at the end of ¢ach accounnmy year - - -
5 “The aoount of further mterest remaming due and payable even n the succeeding vears,
unnl such date when the mnterest dues as above are actually pard to the small enterprise lor
the purpose of disallowance us a deductible expenditure under scction 23 of the MSMED

Act 2000
=includes dues of niicro enterprises and small enterprisvs amaunting Rs Nil (March 31,2022 : Rs 0.58 lakbhs. April 01, 2021 Rs Nil) pertaining to Fayable an

purchase of Praperty, plant and equipment [refer note 144d)]

15: Guvernment Grant

Particulnrs Asat Asat Asnt
Mareh 35, 2023 March 31,2022 April D1, 202§
Ciovernment srant 733 8 80 1026
Total 7.33 .80 10.26
Nem Current 586 733 879
Current 147 147 147

{Thits spuce has nicainathy heen dept bunk)




Internrel Building Produocts Private Limited
CIN:U4R20IDLIYSIPTCO1 7029

Notes to finpneinl statentents as nt Mareh 31, 2023
{Antount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulirs Amount
Balance ns 3t April 01, 2021 10.26
Receved during the year -
Released 1o the statement of profitand loss (1.47)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 8.80
Receved durimg the year -
Released (o the stavement ol profit and loss 1147
Balance as nt Mareh 31, 2023 7.33

Giovernment grants have been received for the purchase of certam wems of praperty, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled condiions or contingencics

attached to these grants.

16. Countract linbilities

Asat Asal As il

March 31,2023 darch 31,2022 April 01,2021

Conwract lalihues

- Deterred revenue r11292 R 02 72249

- Advanges Trom customers . . . BARY 64 suitn? 3875 1

Total 10,602.61 §,759,09 4.898.23

Curient 11,602 6] B.I50 09 4,508 23

Non- current - - -

17. Provisions

Purticulirs As at As at As ut
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 _April 01, 2021

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences 13700 103 81 100.51

Qther provision

Antcipated loss un cantiacd 08 1197 14 31

Total 137.48 115,78 250,02

Current 13743 11578 23002

Nuon- current

Information nbout individual provisions and significant estimates

Luss vrder is provided for the contracts where the Company expects to mcur a loss The table below

ansecapated loss on contracts. For further detmls

gives information about movement in provision for

MMavements in proyisions

[tarticulars Amount

Ralance as ac April G, 2421 140,51

Created duning the vear IR

Unhsed during vear (149 31)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 11.97

Charged to profit or loss 048

Utihised duning year (11.97)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 .48

18: Other current linbilities

Frarrculars Asat Asat Asat
Alarch 31,2023 DMarch 3).2022  April 01, 2021

Statutory dues payable 891 59 91017 539 09

fnterest payable on staiwory ducs 315.55 318 88 12537

Advance apainst Sale of Flats appearing under Investnent Properlics - 1 00 930

Tutal 1.207.14 1,230.05 693.96

(This space hos miemsntly heen lft hlunky
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Notes 10 financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
{ Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19: Revenue [rom vperations

Particulars For the year  + For the year
ended ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from Pre-cngincercd building comracls 98.613.08 72.134.07
Sale of products
- Building materials 12.043.40 9.375.66
(ther operating revene
- Scrap safes 1,655.47 1,446 29
- (Onher services 80.05 53822
Total 1.12,392.60 83.494.24
Disaggregated revenue information
set out helow is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
Building materials:
Metal veilings and corrugated roafing 1879506 135514
Steel struclure 8.211.04 5496110
Light gauge [rammg systems 4283 167 67
11,133.43 848397
Buought out items 909.97 891.69
12.043.40 9.375.60
Pre-engineered building 98.613.68 72.134.07
(iters 1,735.52 1.984.31
Total revenue from contracts with cusfomers 1.12.392 60 §3.494 24
Timing of revenue recognition
CGoods transferred at a pomt n ume 13,698 87 10.821.95
Pre-engmeered building contracts and other services transferred over lime 98.693.73 72.672.29
Total revenue Trom contracts with eustoniers 1.12.392.60 33.494.24
Contract balances Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022 April 01,2021
Trade receivables [refer nate 7(b)(i)] 19.707.79 11.365.24 10.201.16
Contract assets | refer note (b)) 2.792.94 2.124.60 1.660.91
Contract liabilities (reler note 16) 10,602 61 §.739.09 4.598 23

Refer note Febity and aote 16 for details on trade recen ables and Contrawt babnlities respectively

Contricl assel 15 recognised when there is excess of revenue camed over lllings on contracts wilh customers

Right of return assels and refund liabilities are not present in contracls wilh cuslomers.

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit aid Toss with the contracted price:

Particulars

For the year

For the yeur

ended ended
March 31.2023  March 31,2022
Revenue as per contracted price i.14.164.61 83.494.24
Adjustments:
- Degsclation aimount {1.772.01) -
Revenue frrom contract with customers 1.12,392.60 83,494.24

Performance obligation

Please refer nate 2(iv) in accounting policies for performance obligation in relation to revenue from contracts with customers




Intevarch Building Produets Private Limited

CIN: L4320 1DL1983PTC017029

Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{.Anmount in lalkhs, unless otherwise stated)

20: Otherinconie

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Interest income on:

Bank deposits 56495 29509

Income tax refund 231 2493

Others 636 7.02
Rental meome on.

[nvestment propertics 13539 121 86

Others 18.00 2211
Provision lor doubtfih debts/ advances written back (net) 448 68 -
Bad debis recovered 50.70 15.91
Nel gain on disposal of property. plant and equipment 10.88 8.31
Nel gain on sale of investment propertics 6.19 94.67
Fair value gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 1.03 -
Gaoverument grants 147 1.47
Total 1.246.16 591,37

Ciovernment grants have been received for the purchase of certain items of property, plant and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or

conungencies attached to these grants,

21: Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Particulars For the year

For the year

ended ended

Aarch 38,2023 Marvch 31,2022
Tnventory at the beginning of the year QN3 T5 6.564.97
Add Purchases during the year 73.708 71 611346 38
Add Creation / (Reversal) of provision for anticipated [oss on comrasts L] (13750
Less: Capine consumption (171.13) 16 44)
L.ess: Inventory at the end of the veur 18.966.2%) (9.713.7%)
Tutal 74.273.53 56.943.62

2% Inerease in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Inventaries at the beginning of the year
Fmished 2o0ds 19.56 214
Semn fimshed gouds 1.904.67 1.288.70
Waork in progress 1496.37 1.646.36
Scrap 1347 15 65
Total inventorics at the beginning of the year 343407 2.975.15
Tnventories at the end of the year
Finished goods 1902 19.56
Senn fimished goods 2,383.27 1.904.67
Work i progress 2,021.34 1.496.37
Scerap 3563 1347
“Total imvertones at the end ol the year 4,459,206 JA3L0T
Increase in inventories (1.025.19) (458.92

23: Employee benefils expense

For the year

For the year

Particulars
ended ended

March 31,2023 Mareh 31,2022
Salaries, wages. allowances and bonus 8.001 98 1.718.83
Contribution te provident and other funds 626.97 609.73
Gratuity expenses (Note 33) 34225 3311
Siafl wellare expenses 36510 280.61
Total 9.336.30 8.922.28




Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U45201DL1983PTC017029

Nutes (o financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31,2023
(Amaount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24: Finanee costs

Particulars

For the year
ended
March 31,2023

For the year
ended
March 31,2022

Interest on:

- cash credit from banks and vehicle loans 30.37 53.20
- income lax 18.76 12.37
~ [ease liabilities 61.84 41.19
- olhers 9.66 214.24
Guarantee charges 0.57 092
Other finance cost 138.42 123.57
‘Total 259.62 445,49

25: Depreciation and amortization expense

Particulinrs

For the year

For the year

ended ended
Mareh 312023 March 31,2022
Toepreciation on property. plant and equipment {refer note 3) 372.29 1.044.97
[eprectation on invesiment properiies {refer note 4) 688 947
Amurtization of intangible assets (refer note 3) 9.71 10.14
Depreciation of right-ol-use assets (refer note 6) 140.74 11145
Total 729.62 1,175.73

26: Qther expenses

Particulars

For the year

For the year

ended ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022

Job work and installation charges 11.300.23 7.854.18
T-quipment Nire and site charges tincluding insurance ol sites 324.05 433.72
antounting to Rs 47.77 lakhs (previous year Rs. 23.07 lakhs)
Consumption of stores, sparcs and packing materials 2.063.91 1.731.98
Power and luel 045.95 387.09
Freight and forwarding charges 2.i78.60 1.,521.30
Raues and taxes 24 52 200.09
{nsuranee 3761 4329
Repairs and maintenanee
- Mant and machmery 6143 7230
- Building 102.07 177.75
- Others 17557 148 36
Lxpenditure on corporate social responsibility (refer note below) 65.65 47.00
Advertising and sales promation 53.08 29.21
Commission o agenis (other than of selling agents) 342 21.34
Travelling and conveyance 497.04 218.73
Communication cosis 4043 9.0
Printing and stalionery 07.32 56.27
|.caal and professionul fees 562.61 30548
Payments to auditors (refer noke below) 40.69 37.03
Net loss on foreign currency transactions 9.00 0.53
Rent {Note 34) 54.40 48.30
Bad debisfadvances written off (net) 814.8:4 355.04
Less: Provision for doubtful debts and advances adjusted out of above (536.47) (262.66)
Allowanee for doubtful debis and advances - 579.39
[onation 0.29 0.24
Tesung expenses 2089 1025
Bank charges 43194 41201
Security service expenses 91 82 8076
Miscellancous expenses S8 497 4915
Total 19,169.91 14.798.19
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023
{(Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Notes:
Pavments to auditors

Particulars

For the year

For the yeir

ended cmled
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
As auditor:

Audit fees 38.00 36.00
Reimbursement ol out of pockel expense 269 1.03
Total 40,69 3703
Note:

Corperate Social Responsibility:
Particulars For the year For the year
cided ended
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
a. Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 63.65 51.56
b. Total of previous year {shortfall)/excess amount - 397
<. Amount approved by the Board/required to be spent during the year 65.65 47.60
d. Amaunt spent during the year ended on March 31, 2023: In cash Yet to be paid in Taotal
eash
i Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
il. On purposes other than (i) above* 65 65 - 6565
¢. Amount spent during the year ended on March 31,2021:
i Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
1 On purpuses other than (i) above* 47.60 - 47.60

* Fullowing are the nature of activities:

{a) Uelping in setting up clinics and providing cducation for women and ¢hildren,
(b) Promoting all activitics for physieal. cultural, and social uplitting of the general public

(This space has wientionall: been lefi blank)
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Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U45201DLE983PTCO017029

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in lakhs, vnless otherwise stated)

27, Derivative instruments
The Company does not use derivative instruments such as forward exchange contracts to hedge its risk associated with foreign
currency fluctuations.

28: Pending Receipt of Appeal eflect order for assessment year 2009-10 where the appeal has been decided in favour of the
Company by [TAT. Interest on income tax refund has not been recognised there of as the amount is nol presently reasonably
determinable. Interest income on such refund shall be recognised in the year appeal elfect order is received from Income tas
authoritics,

29. During the previous year ended March 31. 2022. one of the plants of the Company in Uttarakhand. Pantnagar Plant witnessed
sume Tabour unrest., where the workmen resorted to deliberate “Go Slow production™ resulting in fall in the production at Pantnagar
Plant. The management of the Company did ripartite conciliation meetings with the jurisdictional Assistant Labour Commissioner
Pantnagar. However no agreement could be made due 1o the adamant attitude of worker Union Representatives. The Company had 1o
declare Partial Lock Out as per the provisions of Section 6 (S) of the UP Industrial Dispute Act, 1948 on March 16, 2022 which got
lified lified on July 06, 2022 ' Lock out perind") and the Pantnagar Piant started to function normal since then, The Production loss
in the Pantnagar Plant during the Lockout period was covered by the increasing the production in other plants and engaging some
autside job workers.

During the current year, the Labowr Secretary (Ministry of Labour and employment . Government of Uttavakhand ) declared the lock
out Hlegal. and the Company has also received a demand of Rs. 184.95 Lakhs from Asstt, Labour Commissioner . Pantnagar
CALC"). towards the wages of workers during the lockout period . The Company has challenged the labour secretary order and
demand raised by ALC and filed a writ petition before the Hon'ble High Court. Uttarakhand. The [lonble Jligh Court has granted
stay on the demand raised and the above mutter is stil! pending to be adjudicated.

in regard o the above matier, the Company. hused an the advice of its legal counsel. believes that there is no probable cash outllow

in this regard,

uring the year 2022-23, 428 workers which were part of labour union went on strike in Fant Nagar and Kichha planis w.e.l.
September 6. 2022 which continued tiil December 15. 2022 and the labour union reached an agreement between the Company and
tabour union. which was signed.

In the said agreement, it was agreed that the Company will provide increment to the striking workers w.e.t. Jan 01, 2023 instead of
July 01, 2022, The same will be payable in July 2023 as an arrear and workers agreed that they will not demand increment for carlier
months i.e.. July 2022 w Dec 2022,

Production in these unils have resumed with full vigour. Production loss during the strike period was managed with increasing
production in other unit and by outsourcing the production to job workers.

(This space has intentionally been left blanks
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Notes to linaneinl statements for the year ended Marel 31,2023
(Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

30: Income Tax

The major component of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

Statement of profit and loss

Profit or loss section: For the year For the year
ended ended
March 35,2023  March 31,2032
Current income tax:
Curred mcome tay charge 332344 928 05
Adjustment ol meome tax relating to earhier year S280 16.27
Deferred tax chargeferedit):
Relating to origination and reversal of wemporary ditferences * 372.70 (398.46)
Income Tax expense reported in the statewent of profit and loss 2,749.03 545.80
* including chargef(credit) of Rs (47.38) lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs (13.23) lakhs) in respect of carlicr years
O section:
eferred ax related to itemis recognised in OCT during the year.
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Remeasureiments gain/(loss) on defined benefit liability 30.14) 3287
Income tax charged to QCI - chargef{credit) {31.14) 32.87

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 3, 2022,

Particulars

For the year

For the year

ended ended
Mareh 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Avccounting prodit before tax 10,895.27 2,259.22
Al statulory mcome (ax rate of 25.168% (March 31, 2022 25 168%a) 2.742.12 568.60
Adjustments 1n respect of current income tax of carlier years 52.89 10.27
Adjustments in respect of delerred income tax ol earlicr years 147.39) 113.23)
Proceeds from sale ol investment property {1.56) (23 83}
Tax elfect of expenses that are not deduetible in defermining taxable profit:
Others (permanent differences) 297 (1.95)
AL elfective income tax rate of 25.22% (Previons year: 24.10%) 2,749.03 545.80
licome tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 2,749.03 S45.86

Deferred tax

Dueferred tax relates to the following: Balance shect Statement of profit and loss
Mareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01,2021 March 31,2023 Muarch 31,2022
Deferred tax linbilities -
Property, plant and cquipment and intangible (1.089.94) (1.068.79} (1.176.62) 2113 (107 83)
Right of use nssets- Leasehold land {762.40) (791.28) (822.15) 128.38) (30.87)
Right of use assets- Others {149.53) 1108.60) 1112.72) 40.87 14.06}
Others - 16.27) {2.58) 16.27) 3.69
Total deferred tax linbility (A) (2,001.87) {1.975.00) (2,1 1407) 26.87 (139.07)
Deferred tax asscis
L.case hability 159.67 11290 112,72 @6.71 {0.18)
Allowances lor credit losses 206 35 45932 379.61 25297 (7971
Insallewance under section 143A 420.82 46534 32720 44.52 (13814
IEfteet of expenditure debited to the statement 624 34 681.87 391.24 60.03 (93.38)
of profit and loss in the current year/earlier
yewrs but allowable for lax purposcs on
pavment basis
Provision lor contingencies - - 37.63 - 37.63
Trade payable - - 49.01 - 490§
Others 1.72 5.66 4.11 3.94 (1.55)
Total deferred tax liability {8) 141340 1,728.09 1,501.57 314.69 (226,52
Deferred tax assets/(linbility) (Net) (A - B) (588.47) (246.91} (612.50) 341.56 {365.59)




Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U45201DL1983PTC017029

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The Company offscts tax assets and liabilities il and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate 1o income laxes levied by the same tax autherily.

Reconciliation of deferred tax liabilities (net) March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance as of 1 April (246.91) (612.50)
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in profit or loss (372.70) 3938.46
Tax income/{expense) during the year recognised in OCI 31.14 (32.87)
Closing balance as at 31 March {588.47) {246.91)

31: Earnings per share (EPS)
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profi for the year auributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equily shares autstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the prolit auribulable to cquity holders of the Company by the weiglited average number of equity
shares owtstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equily shares into cquily shares.

The following table reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Profit attribumable to equily holders 8,146.24 1.713.36
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and diluted EPS (number} : 1,50,00,600 1,50,00,600
Basic and diluted eamings per equity share (in Rs.) 54.31 11.42

{This space has intentionally heen left blank)
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32: Significant accounting judgements , estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's linancial stalements requires management to make judgemerts, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates could result i outcomes that require a material adjusiment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in (uture periods.

Other disclosures relating to the company’s exposure lo risks and uncertainties includes:

« Capital management Note 41

+ Financial risk management objectives and policies Note 40

« Sensilivily analyses disclosures Notes 33 and 40

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgemenis, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with rencwal and termination options — company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-caneellable term af the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend the lease i
it 1 reasonably certain 1o be exercised, or any periads covered by an option to terminaie the lease. it it i5 reasonably certain not o be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and iermmation optwns The compamy applics Judgement m evaluating whether itis
reasonably cortamn whether ar not Lo exercise the option 1o renew or termmale the lease Thit s, o considers afl relevant factors thin create an
ccunonic meentive for 1t o exercise either the renewal or tlermmation. After the commencement date, the company reassesses the fease werm i there
15 a significant event or change in circumstances that 1 within its control and affects 1s ability t exercrse or 1ol to exercise he option 1 renew of o
terminale (¢.g.. construction of signilicant leasehold improvements or signilicant customisation to the leased asset).

The Company included the renewal period as part of the fense term for feases with related party, since there exist cconomic incentive for the
Company to continue using the leased premises and it does not foresee non renewal of the lease term for future periods. Furthermore, the periods
covered by termination options are included as part of the lease term only when they are reasonably cerdain nol to be exercised.

Refer tn Note 13 lor information on potential future rental payments.

Property lease classification — company as lessor
The Company has entered into leuses on its investment properties The Company has retams substantally all the risks and rewards imcidental 1o
ownership of these properties and accounts lor the contracts as operating leases.

Revenue lrom contracts with customers
The Company epplied the following judgements that significantly aftect the determination ol the amount and timing ol revenue (rom contracls with

Cistomers:

Uneertainty on the Estimation of the Total Construction Revenue and Total Construction Cost:

The Company recognises revenue from the construction contracts over the period of contract as per the input method of IND AS 115 “Revenue Itom
contracts with the customers™ The contract tevenue is deternuned based on praportion of contract cost incurred w date compared W estimited tolal
comtract cost which mvelves significant judgement. wentification of contractual obhgations, and the campany’s right 1o recewve pavments for
per forntnee completed 1l date. risk on collectability due to liquidation damages and othe penaliies mposed by the customers. <hange i seope and
consequentitl revised contact price and recognition of the liabsdny for loss making contracts vnerous obligations ¢le. The Company has cftterent.
coordinated system for calculation and forecasting its revenue and expense repostng. However actual project outcome may deviate positvely or
negatively from the company's calculation and forecasting which could impact the revenue recognition up 1o fhe stage of project completion and s
recognised progpectively in the financial statements.

Estimates and assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significam risk of
causing a material adjustment o the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next (inancial year, are deseribed below. The company
based its assumptions and estimates on paramelers available when the ancial stalements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assamplions
about Tuture developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that swre beyond the control of the company. Such
changes are reflected in the ussumptions when they eceur.

Fair value of property, plant and equipment and right o use asscts and others

The Company measures its property. plant and equipment and right to usc assts (i.c leasshold land) al Fair value amounts on transition date The
Company cngaged an accredited independent valuer to assess fair value at April 01, 2021. The valuation techniques and key inpuls used 10
determine fair value of the assets are provided in note 3 and 6.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company uses 1ts technical expertise along with historical and mdustry trends {or determiing the economic life ol an asset/component ol an
assel The useful lives are reviewed by the management penodscally and revised. 1f appropriate In case of a revision. the unamortised depreciable
amount 15 charged over the remainimg uselul Tife of the assets
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Fair value of Investment propertics

The Company disclose fair value of investment propertics. The Company engaged an accredited independent valuer 1o assess [air value lor reporting
periods at April 01, 2021, March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2023, The valuation techniques and key inpuls used to determine fair value of the assets are
provided in note 4.

Approaches used in Valuation Methodology for fair valuation of property, plant ind equipment, right to usc assets and investment
properties and others:

Market Approach

Under this method the recent sales and listings of comparable assets are gathered. Adjustments are then applied to these observations for differences in
location. time of sale, and physical characteristics between the subject assets and the comparable assets, to estimate a fair market value for the subject
assels.

The comparative analysis perforied in this approach focuses on similarities and differences among assets and transactions that affect value including
differences in the assets appraised the motivations of buyers and sellers, market conditions ai the time of sale. size, location, physical features and
cconomic characteristics. Elements of comparison are tested against market evidence to determine which elements are sensitive to change and how
they affect value.

Under replacement cost method, this is normally the cost of replacing the property with a modern equivalent at the relevanmt valuation date. An
exception is where an equivalen! praperty would need to be a replica of the subject property in order 1o provide a participant with the same utilily, in
which case the replacement cost would be that of repraducing or replicating the subject building rather than replacing it with a modern cquivalent. The
replacenient cost reflects all incidental cosis, as appropriate, such as the value of the land, infrastructure, design fees, finance costs and developer profit
that would be incurred by a participant in creating an equivalenl assel.

Provision for expected credit [osses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company makes provision of expected credil losses on trade receivables using @ provision matrix. The provision nlrix is based on its historical
observed default rates. adjusted for forward looking estimates. Al every reporting date, the historical ohserved default rates are updated and Company
makes appropriate provision wherever awtstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed defaull rates. {orecast economic conditions and ECLS is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of loreeast economic conditions. The company’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of cconomic conditions may also not be representative of customer™s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
company's trade receivables and contract assels is disclosed in Note 40.

Taxes

Significant managenent judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
the level of future taxable profits together with [uture tax planning strategies.

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 30.

Defined benefit plans {Gratuity benefits)

The cust of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the grawity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may diller from actual developments in the future. These include
the determination of the discount rate; fuire salary increases and mordalily rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature. a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds where remaining maturity of such bond correspond to expected term of defined benelit obligation. The underlying bonds are further
reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis
that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The morlality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality 1ables tend to change only at interval in response w0 demographic
changes. Future salary increases and graluity inereases are based on expected [uture inflation rates for the respective coutries.
|Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 33.

FFair value measurement of financial instruments

When the (air values of Tinancial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active
markets. their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these mudels are taken from observable
markels where possible. but where this is not leasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements inclwle considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial
instruments. See Note 38 and 39 for [urther disclosures.

Leases - Estimating the ineremental borrowing rate
The Compary cannot readily determine the inierest rate implicit in the lease. therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate (IBR) 1o measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have 1o pay to borrow over o similar term, and with a similar seeurity. the funds
necessary 1o obiain an asset of a similar value 10 the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Coumpany *would have to pay”. which requires estimation when no observable rates are avaifable or wlien they need 10 be adjusted 10 reflect the terms
vailable.
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33. Net emplovee defined benefit liabilities

Particulars As at As at Asal
March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

Non- current

Gratuny U6 38 1.971 77 1.928-19
Total 906.38 1,974.77 1,928.49
Current

Ciramgy 800 00 15443 182 93
Total 800.00 154,43 [82.93

The Company has a defined benefit gratwity plan. Every employee who has campleted five or more years of service gels a gratwity on departure at

15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service or pari thereof 1n excess of 6 months. as per the provisions of Payment off

Gratnty Act. 1972 Earlier the plan was unfunded The Company has set up a Gratusty Fund on February 02, 2023 for providing benefits to
employees and certan sum will be contributed by the Company to the fund from tme lo ume. The fund has been created i the form of a trust and
it 15 governed by the board of trustees. The trustee entered ko a Group Gratuity Scheme with insurer and premium paid therefore by the Company
will be considered as contribution to the fund. During the current year, the Company has filed the apphication lor approval as per rules contamed n
Part C of fourth schedule o Income Tax Act. 1961 trom Commissioner of Income Tax which is pending till as on date.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefil expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss and amounts recognised in the
balance sheet Tor the gratuity plan

a) Gratuity
Chunges in the defined benefit oblipation as at March 31, 2023:

Particulars For the vear ended March 31,2023 For the year ended Marcih 31, 2022
Defined Fair value  Benefit Delined Fair value Benefit
henelit of plan liability benefit of plan liability
phlipation _ assets obligation assets
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,129.20) - (2,129.20) (2.111.42) - (2, 111.42)
Cost charged to prafit and loss
Service Cost (193 46) - {193 46) (169 53) - 1169 33)
Net Interes! expense L1533 09) ERL] {113 90) {1413 58) - 1143 58)
Sub-total included in profit and loss (346.35) 4.19 (342.36) (313.11) - 313.11)
{refer note 23)
Benetiis Pad 186 81 - 1506 81 164 75 - 164 75

Renteasurement painsf{fosses) in other
comprehensive inconie

Return on plan asset (excluding amounts - (0.91) {091) - - -
meluded in net interest expense)

Actuarial changes arising from changes in - - - - - “
demographic assumplions

Actuartal changes anising from changes n (134 06} - {184 06} 2191 - 91 91
financial assumpuions

Experience adjusinents 61 34 - 61 34 38 67 - 3867
Sub-totel included in QCI {122,72) {(0.91) {123.63) 130,58 - 130.58
Contributions bv employer - 702 00 702.00 - - -
Balance at the end of the year (2,411.66) 705.28 (1,706.38) (2,129.20) - [2,129.20)

The plan assets are managed by the Gratuwiy Trust formed by the Company “The management of 100% of the funds 15 entrusted according (o norms
of Gratuty Trust, whose patiern of investment is gvailable with the Company,

Mareh 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
[nvestment funds Amount % Amount Yo Amotint Y
TCICT Prodeatiaf Lite Insurance 30328 71 36%, NA NA NA NA
Future Generaly [ndia Lile Insurance 20000 18 36% NA NA NA NA
Compam Limuted
Citsh and cush equivalent 200 0 28% NA NA NA NA
The principat assumptions used n defermuning nel emploves detined benelit habihiues are shown below
Particulars March 31,2023 Marclt 31,2022 April 01,2021
% % %
1) [hscounting Rate 738 719 6.80
it) Future Salary increase 700 6.00 6.00
i} Retirement Age (years) 38.00 58.00 a3 00
1v) Mortahty Table 100% ol TALM 100% ol TALM 1% ol IALM
(2002 - 14 (2012 - 1) {M12-14)

V) AlnLion a1 Ages

=Upto 30 years 300 300 300

From 31 10 44 vears 200 200 2 00

-Above 44 vears 1 00 1.00. 100
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The Company has ceiling limit of Rs 20.00 lakhs aligned with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972,

A guantitative sensitivity analysis (or significant assumption as at March 31, 2023 is as shown below:

Assumptions March 31,2023 March 31,2023
Discount Rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (124.07) 134.30 125.79 (118.24)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
Assumptions Discount Rate FFuture salary increases
Sensitivity level 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Increase decrease increase decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation (110.84) 120.14 11343 (105.98)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analyses are based on a change in a significant
assumption, keeping all other assumptions constant, The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
oblization as it is unlikelv that chanses in assumplions would occur in isolation rom onc another.

The following are the maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) §94.09 15443
Between 2 and 5 years 364.37 333.67
Between 5 years 1.853.21 1.641.09
Total expected payments 2411.67 2,129.19

The average duration of the defined benefit plan abligation al the end of the reporting period is 15.69 years ( March 31, 2022: 16.22 years, April
01, 2021: 15.90 years).

b) Defined contribution plans

The Company also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made la provident fund. employee pension scheme and employee’s
state insurance scheme for employees as per regulations. The contributions are made to registered funds administered by the government. The
oblization of the Campany is limited to the amount contributed and it has no [urther contractual or any constructive obligation. The expense
recoenised during the period lowards delined contribution plan is Rs 586.45 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs 572.03 lakhs).

The Code on Social Sccurity. 2020 (‘Code') relating 1o employee benefits during employment and post-employment benefits received Presidential
assent in September 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazeue of India. However., the date on which the Code will come into effect has
not been notificd. The Company will assess the impaet of the Code when it comes into effect and will record any refated impact in the peried when
the Code becomes effective.

34: Leasces
Company as 2 Lessee

The Company has lease contracts for various items ol offices. residences. lands and equipment/ machinery used in its operations. Lease of plant
and machinery have lease tenure of § years. buildings have Jease terms of 10 years. while land have lease term of 90/99 years. The Company's
obligations under ils leases are secured by the lessor's title ta the leased assets. There are several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options, which are further discussed below.

The Company also has certain leases of buildings with lease terms of 12 months or less or with fow value and certain leases of equipment/
machinery with fow value. The Company applies the *short-term lease” and *lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemplions for these leases.

Sel oul below are the carrving amounts of right-of-use assels recognised and the movements during the period:

Particulars Land Buildings Plant and Total
cquipment

As at April 01, 2021 4.894.90 447.88 - 5.342.78
Additions (note 6) - - 2918 29.28
Depreciation expense 63.72 44.7% 0.64 111.15
As at Mayrch 31, 2022 4.829.18 403.09 28.64 5.260.91
Additions/ Madification (notc 6) 23742 237.42
Depreciation expense 65,72 71.17 3186 14075
As at March 31, 2023 4,763.46 569.34 24.78 5357.58
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease hiabilities and the movements during the pertod

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Opening Balance 448 57 44788
Additions - 2928
Modification 23742 -
Accretton of mterest 61 84 4119
Payments (113 3%) 169.78)
Closing Balanee 634.44 448.57
Non - Current 377.74 414 75
Current 3670 3382

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 40.
The eftfective interest rate for [case liabihities 15 9.50 % with maturity between 2030-2031

The fllowing are the amounts recognised 1w profit and loss aecount

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
Marels 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Depreciztion evpense of nght-ol-use assets 140 7 11135
Inlerest expense on lease labilites a1 84 411y
Expense relating 1o short-lerm leases & leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 3440 48 30
Tetal amount recognised in profit and loss 256.98 200.64

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs 113,39 (including mnterest of Rs 61.84 lakhs) in March 31,2023 |Previous year Rs 69 78
lakhs {mncluding interest payment of Rs. 41.19 lakhs)] The Company also had non-cash additions 1o right-ol-use assels and lease liabikities ol Rs
23742 i March 31, 2023 (Rs 29 28 lakhs 10 March 31, 2022}

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and ternunation options These options are negotiated by management o pravide
fiexsimlity m managing e leased-asset portfoho and align with the Company’s business needs Management exercises sigmificant Judgement in
deter mining whether these extension and wermination oplions are reasonably certan to be exercised (see Note 34)

Company as 1 Lessor

Conmercial property given on operating lease:

The Company has entered into operating lease agreement for leasing a part ol the factory at Greater Noida (Uttar Pradesh) (sub-lease agreement),
sel up on teasehold land as an investment property. The kease term for factory at Greater Noida was for 9 years, with an escalation clause of 15%
alter completion of every 3 years along with non-cancellable lease period of first 3 years The lease term for the period of 9 years completed on
April 30. 2021 and the Company extended the lease periad for one year we I May 01, 2021 to April 30. 2022 without rent esealabon The lease
ternt for the perind of | year compleied on April 30, 2022 and the Company renew the tease penod for three year we £ May 01, 2022 w Apnl 30,
2025 wath a cancellable clause which can be exercised by erther party The rental income m respect ol such leases recogmized m the simement all
prafi andd loss 15 Rs 135 39 lakhs tMarch 31 2022 1< 119 03 fakhs)

Resudential flais given on operanng lease :

The Company had entered into operating lease agreement lor leasing us Pamt Nagar residenual taws lor a shoert term penod of 11 months ull
previous year  The rental income i respeet of such flats recogruzed in the siatement of profit and loss ts Rs Nil {(March 31,2022 2 83 lacs)
There are no non-cancellable dease period as on reporting dates hence future mimmum rentals receivable Tor the above leases will be Nil for the
reporting perted Mareh 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
Fupments grven on aperaiing lease:
The Company has entered inlo operating lease agreement (o leasing us equipment for a short term period - The rental income i respeet ot such
Jeases recognized in the statement of profit and loss 1s Rs. 18 00 Lakhs (March 31,2022, Rs 2211 Lakhs)
35: Commitments and Contingent liabilities
) Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining lo be executed on capital accaunt and not provided for (net of advances) : Rs.1,404.14 lakhs (March 31,
2022 Rs 69 81 lakhs, April 01, 2021: Rs 9.61 lakhs).

(This page has imtennonally been left blank}
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b) Contingent liabilities:

Particulars March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

1} Demands received from Sales tax authorties*® 382.01 1.11078 1,109 34

it) Demands raised by Income tax autherities being disputed by the Company lor AY 131 46 129.34 16212

2006-07 & AY 2020-21

un) Serviee tas demand** [ sabaliry not 312073 14 3207304
ascertnble

iv ) Outstanding bank guaraniees by the Company nool 32 851043 A603 T

v) Demand rassed by the Director of Town & Country Planmng, Chenna, Lowards 24 55 23352 2249

Infrastructure and Amenties charges with respect to Indusinal Bulding approval

{meluding mterest). The Company has deposited Rs. 7.00 Lakhs {March 31,2022 Rs

700 lakhs, April 01, 2021. Rs 7.00 lakhs) against the demand which is included in the

‘Balances with Statutory/Government Authorities” under note 2 lo the financial

statements

vi) Recovery sut filed by a vendor {meludimg interest) 16311 149 59 136 08

vir) Pending labour cases Liabilny not Laabihty not Lsabihty not
ascertamable ascentainable ascertainable

vy Demand raused by Assit Labour Comimissioner Pantnagar (*ALC™). owards the 184 93 - -

waaes of workers during the lockout penod {refer note 29)

ix) Demand raised by Pordur Panchayal towards non payment of House Tax for the 1392 12.18 3.67

period 2010-1F t0 2022-23

~) Demand received from Regional P.F. Comnussioner, Haldwani towards assessment 3426 - -

of PF dues related 10 job workers mvolved/engaged in Job wark by the Company or
job work contractors, i canncetion with the work of the Company The Company has
filed an appeal o Cemral Government Industrial Trbunal (C GI'T)-cum-Labour Courl.
Lucknow and the same 15 pending befure the authonity: The Company Tas deposited
ks 342 laklis (March 31,2022 Nil. Apnl 61, 2021 Nl agannst the demand which 15
wmeluded m the Halanees with statory/governinent authoribies snder nute 9 o the
Ninaneial statements.

x1) There arc numerous wlerpretative issues relating lo the Supreme Court (SC)
\udgement on PF dated February 28, 2019. As a matter ol caution, the Company has
made a proviston on a prospective basis from the date of the SC order. The Company
will update its provision, on receiving further clarity on the subject.

(This page has imentionaliy been left blank)
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*Briel description of habilities for (1) above:

Particulars

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

April 01, 2021

ta)  Demand receved from Goa Sales Tax authorires towards hagher duty on
account of wrong classefication ol gonds for FY 2001-02 (meluding penalty and
interest) The Company has filed appeal with Bombay {ligh Court at Goa

{b)  Demand received ffom West Bengal Sales Tax awthoribes wwards non
production of documents in support of VAT rewrn for FY 2007-08 1o FY 2009-10
The Company has made appeal before Semor Joint Comnussioner. Kolkata

{¢) Demand received from PDelhi VAT Authorities on non submussion of cammercial
1ax Form F regards to inmter-state sales for the AY 2010-11 (includmg witerest)

{d) Demand recerved from Commercial Tax Deparument, Jamshedpur towards short
pavteni of VAT for the FY 2009-10 on the amount of labour charges disallowed
{including mterest). The Company has deposited Rs. 0.40 lakh (March 31, 2022 Rs
040 lakh, Apnil 01, 2021: Rs 0.40 lakh) against the demand which is wicluded in the
‘Balances with Statutory/Government Awhorities’ (refer nole 9 to the financial
slatemenis)

{e} Demand received from Commercal Tax Depaniment, Jharkhand wowards short
payment of VAT for the FY 2008-09 on the amount of labour charges disallowed
{including penalty) The Company has deposited Rs. | 75 lakhs {March 31, 2022 Rs
1 75 lakhs, April 01,2021 Rs 175 lakhs) against the demand whicl 1s included i the
‘Balances wih Statutory/Government  Authorities’ (refer note 9 to the tinancial
statements)

{0 Demand of penalty rarsed by the sales tax authornty towards detention of velucle
The Campany has deposited Rs. 3.46 [akhs (March 31, 2022 Rs. 3.46 lakhs, April 01,
2021 Rs 346 lakhs) agamst the demand which was included n the *Balances with
statutony/government Authontees™ (vefer note 9 to the inancial statlements) in carhier
years The Company has written ofi thus deposited amount during the year

() Demand recerved from Deputy commissioner of Commuercial ‘Taxes. Govemment
of Karnataka lor the FY 201213 on account of taxabiliy £ 14 5% mstead of 5% on
Waork contract 1ax amouniing to Rs 707 42 Lakhs The Company filed writ pention i
High Court which allowed and asked Deputy Commissioner to venity the ducuments
Hewever, Deputy Commissioner agan passed the order raising demand amounting to
Rs 72693 Lakhs. The Company again filed the writ peition aganst the order passed
by Deputy Comnisstoner

The [ligh Court, Karnalaka vide its order dated March 09, 2023, quashed the earhier
arder giving liberty 10 Deputy commissioner of Commercial Taxes, Karnataka to
compuie the tax demand on wrnover at the special rate

th) Demand on account ol Veele Detenton at Utarakhand  The matter 1s pending
with statutory authorties The Company has deposited Rs. 247 Lakhs (March 31,
2022 Rs 2 47 Lakhs, Apnil 01, 2021 Rs 2 47 lakhs ) agamst the demand which 1s
ncladed in the “Balunces with Statutory/Government Authorities’ (refer note 9 1o the

financial statements)

(i) Demand reccived from Uttarakhand GST on account ol F=way il not attached
with invoice copy at tme velicle checking The Company has deposited Rs 109
Lakhs tMarch 31, 2022: Rs 1.09 lakhs, April 01, 2021 Rs. 1 09 Lakhs) agumnst the
demand which 1s included m the “Balances with Suatutorny/Governmen Authornities”
frefer note 9 to the fmancial statenmems)

i) Nemand vn account of Yehicle Detention at Unar Madesh The puter s pending
with statutory authorrties The Company has depousited Rs 144 Lakhs tMarch 31,
22 Rs 144 lakhs, April 01,2021 NIL) aganst the denrnd which is inchuded i the
‘Balances with Statutory/Govermment  Authonties’ (refer note 9 o e (mancial
slalemenis)

tkj Demand on account of Vehicle Detention at Uttrakhand. The matter s pending
with statutory authorities The Company has deposued Rs. 1.62 Lakhs (March 31,
2022 Nil, April 01, 2021: Nil} against the demand which is included in the *Balances
with Statutory/Government Authorities’ under note 9 (o the financial statements.

4104

31206

040

Lizibihty not
ascenanble

109

1.62

44 04

138

040

17351

72693
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31206
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346

1 Qv

Total

382.01

1,110.78

1,109.34
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**Bricl deseription of liabilitses for () above

Particulars pMareh 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021
{a} The Company during the carlier years received a demand, wherein the service lax
authonties alleged that the services provided by the Company are not classifiable
under the serviee category of "Commercial and industrial construction service™ afler
the mtroduction of new entry of *Works contract serviee” in Finance Act 1994 on June
1 2007 and alleged that the Company is required to pay Service Tax under the service
category of “Warks contract service” since June |1 2007 and the cenvat credit avaled
bv it on mputs used should not be adoussible The demand nouge issued by the
authoniies requued the Company e apt far composite WCT category of 2% and 4%,
whereas Company had already pad full serviee ax @ 12 36% without prejudice w
Company's rights The Company had tiled an appeal belore the Hon'ble Customs.
Central Fxerse and Service tax Appellate Trbunal (CESTAT) CESTAT had during
the carhier year. remanded back the matter to the adjudicating authority for re-
determming the tax labilty  During the carlier year, the Company received a
readyudicated demand order tfrom the service tax authores, upholding the basis of
demand carlier rused The Company had filed an appeal before the CESTAT,
Allahabad Bench In carlier year, the Company won the appeal However, m earler
year the Depariment went into appeal before Supreme Count

The Hon'ble Supreme Court heard the appeal of° Service Tax Authonities and tssued is
Order on 02 05 2023 The Supreme Court has remanded back the case 10 CESTAT o
re-compule the demand in terms of Rule 2A, which requires service 1ax liability to be
calcutated only on the service portion of the Contract The Supreme Court has directed
CESTAT (o do this calculation within 3 months, that is, by 02.08.2023. As per the
workings carrted out by the Company under vanious scenarios duly vetled by its
tearned Advocates representing the Company, in this Case, the Company 15 ehgible (o
get Refund under Rule 2A° Based on the opinion of the Advocates, the management of
the Company does not foresee any liability 1o arise on the Company due 10 1hus Re-
Computation W be carned out by CESTAT

The details of demand amount 1s as under.

11 Wrong avatlment of CENVAT credit on inputs; 1117395 1517395
(1 Short payment of Service twx under WCT scheme vis-ievis Industral  Liability not 4026 38 4.026 38

Construction service {includmg penalty of Rs 2.013 19 Lakhs). ascertamable

(i) Fxcess duty collected and passed on o the chients and s demanded (including 16.872 8! 160872 81

penztity of Rs 8.007 83 Lakhs).

Tot:l 32.073.14 32,073.14

Based on favourable decision in similar cases and tegal oprmion obtned by the Company in discussions with the solicitors the Company believes
that there is a air chance of decisions in its favour in respect of all the items listed in (1) to (1) & (v} to (x) above and hence no provision is
consulered necessary against the same

(Thus page has imtentionally been left blank)
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36: Related party disclosure
A. Numes of related parties and related party relationship
Nature of Relationship

1) Kev Management Personne] (KMP)

1) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

) Fntinies on which Key Management Personnel ("KMP™)
have o sigmilicant nfluence / control

(This page has witenionally been left blank)

Nature of the related parties

a) Mr. Arvind Nanda (Managing Directar)
b) Mr. Gawtam Suri (Dircctor)

¢) Mr. Ishaan Surt {Director)

d) Mr. Viraj Nanda (Director)

¢) Mr. Manish Kumar Garg (CEO)

) Mr. Anil Kumar Chandani (CFO)

£) Mrs. Nidhi Goel (Company Sccretary)

Mrs. Shobhna Suri

a) M/s Intertee

by M/s Signu Read Estates 1LEP

o) Atites Developers LLE (lurmerly known as Mis Aries Developers Pyl Lmited)
U} Ni/s Labra Buildwell LLIP

ed M Tapan Assoctates Pyt Limited

0 M/s 1GS THolding Pt Limuted

2} M/s Interarch Foundation

) /s Artfato Studios

1) Interarcli Employees Group Grawity Trust
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B. Related Party Transactions:

The foliow g table provides the wotal amount of transactions (fose have been entered uito » ih retated parties for the relevant financial years

(Rs, In Lakhs)

Transactions during the year

Ke

N
Management
Personnel

Fntities on

which Key

AManagement Personnel (“KMP™)
have a significant influence /

Con

trol

For the year
ended
March 31. 2023

For the year
ended
March 31, 2022

For the year
ended
March 31, 2023

For the year
ended
Mareh 31, 2022

{, Sale of products
-M/s Signu Real Estates LLLP
-M:s Tapan Associates Pyt Limited

2. Lease rent payment

-Mss Intertec

-M#s Aries Developers Pyt Limited
-M/s Signu Real Estates LLP

3. Reimbursement of expenses received
-M s [ntertee

4. Remuneration (refer note (i), (if} and (iii) befow)
SA Arviad Nanda

M. Gautam Suri

-Mr Virg Nanda

-Mr. Manish Kumar Garg

-Mr. Amit Kumar Chandani

-Mrs. Nidhi Goel

3. Finanee Cost
<Mr. Arvind Nanda
~Mr CGautam Suri

6. Loan taken/adjusted
-Mr Gautam Sury

7. Loan repaidfadjusted
-Mr Gautam Suri

8. Corpurate Sacial Responsibilities payment
- M/s Taterarch Foundation

9. Gratuity Contribution

- Interarch Fmployees Group Gramty Trust
§t, Advertisement Expenses

- AL s Artloto Studios

3213
1807
16 12
160.-19
83.32
16.94

1.20
6.87

145.00

32121
48.02
1347
101 .68
78.39
1511

3700
42.00
9.00

483

13.65

702 00

1020

049

39.00
21.00
6.00

10.10
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Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U5201DLI983PTC017029

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{(Amount in lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

C. Related party balances
b The lollowing table provides tie tolal amount of balances outstanding, (payable/receivable 1o/from related partics):

Key Managenient Personnel Entities on which Key Management Personnel
. (“ICMPY) have a significant influence / control,
Particulars
Asat As at Asal As at As at Asat
March 31, 2023 | March 31,2022 | April 01, 2021 | March 31,2023 | March 31,2022 | April 01, 2021
. Remuneration Payable
-Mr Arvind Nanda 249 212 211 B - -
-Mr. Gautam Sur 3T 3.55 223 - - -
-Mr Viriy Nanda 153 1.32 - - - .
-Mr NMamsh Kumar Garg 7123 s 07 -
-Mi Anil Kumar Chandani 4,35 4.61 -
-Mrs Nudiu Goel 1.6l [.32 1.27
2, Amount Payable
=Mr. Arvind Nanda " 0.75 - - - -
3. Unsccured borrowings
-Mr. Arvind Nanda 20.00 20.00 20.00 - - -
-Mr. Gautam Suri - 143 00 70.00 - - -
4. Interest Payable
-Mr. Arvind Nanda 027 027 0.27 - - -
~Mr. Gautam Suri 0.53 1.93 0.96 - - -
3. Seeurity Deposit given
-Ms Interiec - - - 1800 18 G0 18 00
6, Amount Regeivable
-Mre Arand Nanda - - {03 - - -

b Total facilimes/limis tfund and non fund based) from banks are secured by personal guarantee of two promoter direetors of the Company viz Mr. Arvind
Nanda and Mr. Gauwam Suri and Corporate guarantee given by M/s Tntertee. The guarantee charges recognised in statement of profit or loss of Rs 42.35 lakhs
(March 31, 2022: Rs 42.55 lakhs) and correspondingly credited to equity. The loan outstanding (Cash credit from banks) against such facilitiesdimits is Rs.
948 10 lakhs (Mareh 31, 2022: 28,74 lakhs, April 01, 2021 : Rs. 36.61 lakhs)Refer note 14{b)). The outstanding amount of drawn facilitics from non-lund
based Limit is Rs. 24.322.20 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 23,221.03 lakhs, April 01, 2021: Rs 12,072.71).

¢ Short term borrowings fram all banks are secured by way of equitable mortgage on immovable propertics situated at: (a) Plot No. B-33, Sector- 57, Noida,
Uttar Pradesh (Owned by M/s [ntertec{Partnership firm) and {b) Plot No. 28A, Udvog Vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, being immovable properties ovwned
by NE's IntertectPartnership firm).

Notes:

i) The remuncration 1o the key managerial personnel includes value of perquisites (excluding rent payment) based on the acteal payment or evaluated as per
Income Tax Rule, 1962.

1) The remuneration paid to Mr. Arvind Nanda excludes rent of Rs. 42,00 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 2400 Lakhs) paid to M/s Arics Developers Pyt
1.omited for his residence

1) Remuneration paid 1o Mr. Gautam Suri excludes rent of Rs 9.00 Lakhs (March 31 2022: Rs. 6.00 Lakhs) paid w M/s Signu Real Estate LLP for his
restdence

M related pany transavetons eeteraed during the year were i ordimary course of busimess and on arm logih basis

(Thus page has mentionally been lefit blank)
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Interarch Building Products Private Limited
CIN:U45201DLI1983PTCO17029

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37. Segment information

The Company's activities during ihe year were involved in manufacturing, supply, erection and installation ol pre- cngineered buildings. metal
roofing & cladding system and metal false ceilings. Considering the nature of Company's business and operations, there are no separate reportable
segments (business and/or geographical} in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013
and hence, there are no additional disclosures to be provided other than those already provided in the financial statements.
Revenue from major customers

Revenue from cuslomers generating sales of more han 10 % of total revenue with percentage of total revenue are as below:-
Name of the customer March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Grasim Industries Limited 13,762.70 12.25% NA NA

38. Fair Value

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial insiruments:
The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by categories as at March 31, 2023 were as [ollows:

Particulars Amortised Financial Assets / Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at fair Assctsfliabilities Value Value
value through at fair value
statement of profit through OCI
and loss
Assets:
Current and non-current
Invesiments - 501.02 - 501.02 501.02
Trade reccivables 19.707.79 - - 19.707.79 19.707.79
Cash and cash equivalents 5.866.32 - - 5.866.32 5.866.32
Bank balances ather than cash and cash 6,054 44 - - 6.054 .44 6.054 .44
equivalents
Loans 27.63 - - 27.63 27.63
Other financial assets 261.67 - - 261.67 261.67
Total 31,917.85 501.02 - 32,418.87 32,418.87
Liabilities:
Lease labilities 63444 - - 63444 63444
Borrowings 1.027.81 - - 1.027.81 1.027.81
Non current Borrowings 110.56 - - 110.56 110.56
Trade payables 10.366.01 - - 10,366.01 [3.366.01
Other financial liabilitics 1.186.44 - - 1.186.44 1.186.44
Total 13,325.26 - - 13,325.26 13.325.26
The carrying and fair value of financial instruments by catesories as at March 31, 2022 were as {ollows:
Particulars Amortised Financial Assets / Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at fair Assets/liahilities Value Value
value through at fair value
statement of profit through OCI1
and loss
Assets:
Current and non-current
Investents 0.58 - - 0.58 0.58
Trade receivables 11,365.24 - - P1.365.24 11365.24
Cash and cash equivalents 010448 - - 4.010.48 4010.48
Bank balances other than cash and cash 5.165.37 - - 5.165.37 516537
equivalents
Loans 33.66 - - 33.66 3306
Other Raancial assels 524.93 - - 524.93 524.93
Total 21.100.26 - - 21,100.26 21,100.26
Liabilities:
Current and non-current
Lease Habilities J48.57 - - 448,57 448.57
Borrowings 234.20 - - 23420 234.20
Non current Borrowings 101.92 - - 10192 101.92
Trade payables 8.045.95 -m 8.04595 8.045.93
Other financial liabilitics ;yﬁ’ﬁ?\?“% 1.109.98 N Nnn %, [.109.98 1.109.98
Total N SO, 9.940.62 7™ A 9,940.62 9,940,632
X ! BN B L
= Ro
(]




Interareh Building Products Private Limited
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Notes to Ninancial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
{Amount in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

e carrving and fair vahte of linancial instruments by categories 05 sl April 01, 2021 were s {ollows:

Particolars Amortised Financial Assets / Financial Carrying Fair
Cost liabilities at fair Assets/liabilitics Yalue Yalue
value through at fair value

statement of profit thrrough QCI
and luss

Assels:

Current and non-current

[nvestments 0.58 - - 0.58 0.58
"Trade receivables 10,201.16 - - 10.201.16 10.201.16
Cash and cash cquivalents 498.62 - - 498.62 498.62
Bank balances other than cash and cash 6,198.53 - - 6,198.53 6,198.53
cquivalents

Lajns 2620 - - 26.20 26 20
Uther limancial asscls 186.00 - - 186.00 186.00
Total 17,111.09 - - 17.111.09 [7.311.09

Liabilities:
Current and gon-current

Lease liabilities 447.88 - - 447 88 447.88
Borrowings 182.83 - - 182 83 18283
Nuon current Borrowings 12.60 - - 12.60 1260
Trade payables 7.039.84 - - 7.039.84 7.039.84
Other financial liabilities 1.009.60 - - 1,009.60 1.009.60
Tutal 8.692.75 - - 8.692.75 8,692.735

The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents (including bank balances). wade receivables, loans, trade payables and ather current
financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due 1o the shert-term maturities of these instrumems.

Valuation techuique nsed to determine fair vatue

The Fair value of the linancial assels and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in & current Lransaction
between willing parties, other than in a (orced or liquidation sale. The following metheds and assumptions were used (o estimate the ir vales

(i) The fair value of lease liabilities is estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt oa similar terms, credit
risk ind reminining matnrities.

() The Fair values of the Company’s interesi-buearing borrowings wnd loans are determined by using DCF method using discount rate that reflects
the issuer’s horrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period.

(i} The fair value of security depasits and non current investments approximates the carrying value and hence the valuation technigue and inputs
have ol been given.

Ovd Fair value of investments in mutual funds are based on market observable mpns i.e Net Assel Value at the reporting date

39: Tair value hierarchy
All assets and libilities for which [air value is measured or disclosed in the finaneml stalements are categorised within the furr value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is signilicant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilitics
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that has a significant effect on the fair vale measurement are observable, either
directly or indirectly.
1evel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the fowest level input which has a sigmificant efTect on the fair vitlue measurement is nat based on
abservable market data.

(Tius page has imtentionally been lefi blank)
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CIN:U45201DL1983PTC017029

Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2023
(Amount in [akhs, unless otherwise stated)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hicrarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.
Quantitative diselosures fair value measurcment hierarchy for assets and liabilities:

Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active obscrvable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets for which fair values are disclosed:
Investments March 31, 2023 501.02 501.02 - -
March 31, 2022 0.58 - - 0.58
April 01. 2021 0.58 - - 0.58
Trade receivables March 31, 2023 19.707.79 - - 19.707.79
March 31, 2022 11.365.24 - - 11,365.24
April 01, 2021 10,201.16 - - 10.201.16
Cash and cash cquivalents March 31,2023 5.866.32 - - 5.866.32
March 31, 2022 401048 - - 401048
April 01,2021 498.62 - - 498.62
Bank balances other than cash and cash March 31, 2023 6.054 44 - - 6.054.44
equivalents March 31, 2022 5.165.37 - - 5.165.37
April OI, 2021 6.198.53 - - 6.198.53
Loans March 31, 2023 27.63 - - 27.63
March 31, 2022 33.06 - - 33.66
April 01. 2021 26.20 - - 26.20
Other financial assets March 31, 2023 261.67 - - 261.67
March 31, 2022 52493 - - 52493
April 01, 2021 186.00 - - 186.00
Particulars Date of Total Quoted prices Significant Significant
valuation in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1} {Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
Lease liabilities Mareh 31, 2023 634.44 - 634.44
March 31, 2022 448.57 - - 448.57
April 01, 2021 44788 - - 44788
Burrowings March 31, 2023 1,027.81 - - [.027.81
March 31, 2022 234.20 E - 234.20
April 01. 2021 [82.83 - - 182.33
Nun current Borrowings March 31, 2023 110.56 - - 110.56
March 31, 2022 101.92 - - 1¢1.92
April 01, 2021 12.60 - - 12,60
Trade payables March 31, 2023 10.366.01 - - 10.366.01
March 31, 2022 8.045.95 - - 8.045.95
April 01, 2021 7.039.84 - - 7.039.84
Other financial liabjlitics March 31, 2023 1.186.44 - - 118614
March 31. 2022 1.109.98 - - 1.109.98%
April 01, 2021 1.009.60 - - 1.0049.60

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 3 during the year

(This space has imtentionadly heon lefi hlank)
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
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40: Financial risk management objective amd policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities. comprise loans and borrowings, trade payables. lease liabilities and other financial Habilities. The main purpose
of these linancial liabilities is to fnance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial
assets include loans, wrade receivables, cash and cash equivalents {including bank balances) and other finaneial assets that derive directly [Tom its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
Company's senior managentent is supporied by 4 intemal finance team that advises on (inancial risks and the appropriate linancial risk governance lrunework
for the Company. The internal finance team provides assurance to the Company's senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are govemed
by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are tdentitied, measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk
objectives, The Board of Dircetors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks. which are sunmarised below:

(a) Market Risk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fows of a financial instrument will fAuciuame because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk. currency risk and other price risk. such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include loans and borrowings. deposits and investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021.

The sensitivity analyses have been prepated on the basis that the amount of net dely, the ratio of lixed to floating interest rates of the debt at year end March
31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021,

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying values of pratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the
non-financial assets and liabilitjes,

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the fnancial asse1s and
fimancial liabilities held at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and Apnl ¢1, 2021.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ftows ol a financial instrument will fluctuate because ol changes in market interest rates. The
Cumpany's exposure (0 the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s short-term debt obligations with loating interest rates.
The risks are managed by periodic monitering of interest rates. '

Interest Rate sensitivity:

The following 1able demonstrales the sensitivity 1o a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings alfected. Witl all other
varigbles held constant, the Company’s profit before 1ax is alfected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars Inerease in interest % Decrease in interest %
Increase/ {decrease) in profit Increase/ (decrease) in profit
Mareh 31,2 March 31,2022 Barch 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Effect of Increase. decrease in floating (1.30) (4.70) 1.89 4,70

Interest rate by 100 basis points (1%a)

(ii) Fareign currency risk
Foreipn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate beeause of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s expusure 1o the risk of changes in loreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s foreign currency linbilities.

The Company manages its foreign currency risk through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency (FC) cash Hows,
Exposure to foreizn currency risk

The summary of quantitative data about the Company’s exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees, as at March 31, 2023, March 31. 2022 and
April @1, 2021 are as below:

{a) Forcign currency risk exposure:
The Company cxposure o fureign currency risk at the end of the reporting peniod. is as {ollows:

Particulars March 31,2023 Mareh 31, 2022 April 01, 2021
Ush Rupees UsDh Rupees usp Rupees
in [akhs in Iakhs  in Iakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Trade payables and Payable {ur Property. plant and equipment 0.03 210 0,02 1.76 {56 40,79
Total 0.03 2.10 (U2 1.76 0,56 40,79
Exposure to foreien currency risk (liability) 0,03 2,10 0.02 1.76 L.56 48.79
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Forcign currency sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other variables held constant. The impact on
the Company's prolit hefore tax is due to changes in the [air value o’ monetary assets and liabilities. The Company’s exposure (o foreign currency changes for
all other currencics is not matenal.
Particulars Inerease/ (deerease) in profit

March 31,2023 March 31,2022 April 01, 2021

USD sensitivily
INR/USD - Increase by 5% .11 0.09 2.04
INIVUSD - Decsease by 5% 0.1 (0.0%) (2.04)

{iii) Commodity price risk
The Company is exposed Lo movement in price ol steel commodity. Profitability of Company may get alfected by movement in the prices of steel. The
strtegic move ol the Company from lixed price contracts Lo variable price contracts helps mitigate steel price fluctuation risk.

(iv) Equity price risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the value ol a equity financial instrument will {luctuate due to changes in market prices.

The Company does not hold any quoted or marketable equity {financial instruments, hence, ts not exposed o any movement in nrarket prices.

{b} Credit Risk

Credil risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations wnder a linancial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company
is exposcd 1o credit risk (tom its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and [rom ils financing activities, including deposits with banks, {oreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments. The Company only deals with parties which s good credit rating/ worthiness given by external rating
auencies or based on Company's intemal assessmenl.

Trade reccivables and contract assets

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the
factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with the industry and location in which custemers operate.
The Company limits its exposure 1o credit risk (rom trade receivables by establishing a maximunt payment period. Ouistanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored and any shipmenis 1o major customers ar¢ generally covered by letters of credit obtained lrom reputable banks.

The Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix. The provision matrix is based on its historical observed
detault rates, adjusted lor forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and Company makes appropriate
provision wherever outstanding is for longer period and involves higher risk. Generally. frade receivables are written-olT if past due lor more than one year and
are not subject 1o enfvrcement activity. The maximum exposure to credit risk at tie reporiing date is the carrying value of each class of [inancial assets
disclosed in Note 7 (b){i). The Company does tot hold collateral as security. The letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance are considered integral
part of trade receivables and considered in the caleulation of impairment. The Company cvaluates the concentration of risk with respect 1o trade receivables
and contract assets as low, as ils cuslomers are located in several jurisdictions and industrics and operate in largely independent markets,

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure ol the Company’s trade recetvables and contract asset using provision matrix:

Contract Trade receivable
asset Not Less 6 months 1-2 2-3 More Total
due than 6 -1 year years yOars than
months 3 vears
ECL Rate
March 31,2023
Estimated to1al gross carrying amount 279294 | 4712331 1423963 493.94 | 468.84 . 612,93 23.320.61
it defaalt
ECL- simplified approach - 194,01 586.24 20034 1930 - - R19.88
Net carrying asmount 2,792.94 | 4,518.32 | 13,653.39 473.60 | 449.54 - 612.93 22,500.73
Mareh 31, 2022
Estimated total gross camrying amoumnt 212460 3.017.07 R.563.01 3723 175.20 122.66 953.05 1527342
at defauk
1ECL- simplified approach - 144.08 42590 3246 109.96 118.12 933.05 1.783.58
Net carrying amount 2.124.60 | 2,872.99 8,137.71 28477 65.24 4.54 - 13.489.84
April 01, 2021
Estimated total gross carrying amount 1.660.9]1 | 431248 546288 301.94 | 507.44 61019 470,90 13.326.74
M delault
ECL- simplilied approach - 297.65 294.33 11.61 | 147.27 24291 47090 1.464.67
Net carrying amount 1,660,911 4,014.83 5,168.55 290,33 | 360,17 367.28 - 11,862.047

I
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Notes to fnapcial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2023
{Amount in Inkhs, unless otherwise stated)

Financial instruments and cosh deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus
funds arc made only with approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned o each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the
management on an annual basis and may be updated throughout the year subject to approval of the Company’s Finance team. The limits are set to minimise the
concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential [ailure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk [or the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and April 01, 2021 is the

carrving amounts as illustrated in Note 7(c).

Reconcilintion of impairment allowance on trade and other receivables and contract nsset:

Amount
{Rs. In lakhs) |
Impairment allowance as on Aprit 01, 2021 1,464.67
Add/ (less): Provision for expected credit losses 118.91
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2022 1,783.58
Add/ (less): Provision for expected credit losses (963,70}
Impairment allowance as on March 31, 2023 819.88

The significant change in the balance of trade receivables and contract asset are disclosed in note 7(b}(i) and 7(b){ii) respectively.

{c) Liguidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning ool

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with dts financial liabilities. The Company monitors its

risk ol a shortage of lunds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Company's objective is lo maintain a balance between continuing of lunding and {lexibility through the use ol bank overdralls, bank loans, cash credits,

and advance paviment terms.

{1} Financing arrangements
Thie Company has access io the following undrawn borrowings facilities at the end of the reporting

As at Asat
DMarch 31, 2023 March 3i, 2022

As at
April 01, 2021

Floating rate

Expiring within one year {Cash credit {rom banks) 3.551.90 3.971.26 2.963.39
3.551.90 3.971.26 2.963.19
(b) Maturities of financial linbilities
The table below summarises the maturity prolile of the Company™s linancial labilities based on contraciual undiscounted payments.
Balance as at March 31, 2023
Particulars On Lessthan 1165 >3 Total Carrying
demand 1 year years years undiscounted amount of
contractual liabilitics
cash finws

Lease liabilities . 11340 453.60 33165 R98.65 634.44
Borrowings

Vehicle loans* - 7001 122018 - 192.19 171.10
Cash credit from banks 948.10 - - - 948,10 948,10
Borrowings Irom related partics 20,00 . . . 20.00 20.00
Trade payables - 10,366.01 . - 10,366.01 10,366.01
Other nancial liabilities -
Payable on purchase of Property, plant and - 236 - . 2306 236
equipment
Employee dues . 1.142.31 - B E.142.31 1.142.31
Security depusils - 3942 - - 3942 39.42
Imerest acenied and due on borrowing - 1.52 - - 1.52 1.52

* including interest accrued but not due on borrowings
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Balance as at March 31, 2022

Particulars On Lessthan  1to5 >3 Total Carrying
demand I year years years undiscounted amonat of
contractul linhilities
cash flows
| ease liabilities - 7-H40 29760 28905 661 05 448 57
Burrowmgs - - - - -

Vehicle loans* - 3042 116,63 - 167.05 143.15
Cash credit from banks 28.74 - - - 28.74 2874
Borrowings (rom related parties 165.00 - - - 165.00 165.00
Trade payables - 8.04593 - - 8.045.95 8.04593
Other Mmancial habilitics - - - - -

Payable on purchase of Property, plant and - 17.36 - - 17.36 17.36

equipment

Lmployee dues - 1.050.23 - - 1.050.23 1.050.23

Seeunity deposits - w42 - - 3942 3942

Interest accrued and duc on borrowings - 220 - - 2,20 2.20

* including interest accried but not due on borrowings

Balance as at April 01, 2021

Particulars On Lessthan  Tto S >3 Total Carrying

demand 1 year years years undiscounted amount of

contractual liabilitics
cash flows

Feuse habiliies - 6900 276.00 345.00 690.00 447 88

Rurrowings - - - -

Vehicle loans* - 6020 1310 - 73.30 G643
Cash credit from banks 36.61 “ - - 3661 3661
Borrowings fram relawed partics 90.00 “ - - 90.00 90.00
Trade payables - 7.039.84 - - 7,039 84 7.039 84
Other financial liabilities - - - -

Payable on purchase of Property, plant - 3704 - - 374 37 14
and cauipment :

Lmployee dues - 932 20 - - 932.20 Y3220
Security deposits - 38.42 - - 3842 3842
Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 1.23 - - 1.23 1.23

* mcluding, interest acerned but not due on borrowings

+41: Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital. securities prentivm and ali other cquity reserves atributable
the equity holders of the Company, The primary objective of the Company 's capital management is to maxinuse the sharcholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requiremnents of the financial covenants.
T maintain or adjust the éapital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment o sharcholders. return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares.
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which 1s net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, mierest
bearmy loans and borrowings. less cash and cash equivalents,

Particulars March 31,2023 Mlarch 31, 2022 Aareh 31, 2021

RBuorrowings INote 1bl 1.138.37 33612 19543
i ess. cash and cash equivalents [Note 7ic}] 5.866 32 J.010.48 498 62
Net debt (4,727.93) (3,674.36) {363.19)
Fauity 39927 90 31.831.91 29.978.29
Total Capital 39.927.90 31.831.91 29,978.29
Capital and net delt 35,199.95 28,157.55 29.675.10
(iearing Ratio -13.43% -13.05% -1.02%

In order Lo achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things. aims Lo ensure that it meets financial covenants attached
to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that deline capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current
period

No chianges were made in the objectives. policies or processes for managing capital durng the years ended NMarch 31, 2023, March 31, 2022 and Aprid 01,
2021 >
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42, First«time rdoption of Ind AS

These Minanciad statements, for the year ended March 31, 2023, are the 1irst linancial statement the Company has prepared in accordance with lnd AS For
penads up to and including the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the accounting standards
notifted under Sccuion 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2021 and presentation
requirements of Division [ of Schedule IT1 1o the Companies Act, 2013 ('Previous GAAP/Indian GAAP").

Accordmgly. the Company has prepared linancial statements which comply with Tnd AS applicable for periods endmg on March 31. 2023 wpgether with the
comparative penind data as al and for the year ended March 31,2022, as described m the summary of sigmificant accountng policies [n prepanng these
nanceal staemenis, the Compamy’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at Apnl 01, 2021 the Company’s date of transiion o Ind AS This note
espliains the prnepal adesiments made by the Company in restating s Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balinge sheet as at Apnl 01, 2021
and the Nnancial statenents as at and for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Exemptions applied
Ind AS 101 allows [rst-eme adopters certain exempuions from the retrospective application of certam requirements under Ind AS. The Company has
applied the follewing exemptions:

L. Deemed cost: Property, plant and eguipment, intangible assets and right to use assets (leasehold land)

A first-ume adepter may ¢lect o measure an item of property, plant anel equipiment, right 1o use assets (leasehokd land) at the date ol transtiion at its air
value and use that fair value as its deemed cost at that date Tn additon to this, Ind AS 101 permuts a Oirst-ume adopter o elect W contmue with the carrving
value for imangible assets as recogmsed i the fimancial statements as at the date of ransition 1o Tnd AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use thm
s s deemed cost as at the date of transilion

The Company has elected to measured e property, plant and cquipment and right to use assets (leasehold fand) at far value and use it as deemed cost as
the date of transitton { re April 01, 2021) The Company is continmng with the carrying value for all of its mitangible assets as its deemed cost {net of
depreciation} as at the date of transition ( i.e. Aprel 01, 2021).

2, Deemed costs Investment Property

A lirsi-time adopter may elect to continue with the carnvang value of Investment Propenty as recognised in the Iinancial statements as w the date of
transiiien (o Ind AS. measured as per the previous GAAP and use that a5 its deemed cost as 1 the date of ransiion The Company has clegted t continue
wiath the carny ing value for all of s investment property us recogmised i s previous GAAT linancial as deemed cost it the transition date

3. Leases
A et Indian Aceounuing Standard (Ind AS) 101 Fiest-time Adoption of Tnd AN, provides exeeptions w the seliospectsve apphcation ol Ind AS 110 ease
Accordingly a frst ume adopter may assess the classification of each element as tmance o an operating lease at the date ol transtion o Ind ASs on the
basis of the facts and circumstances existing as al that date. I there is any lease newly classilied as hnance lease then the liest ime adupler may recogmise
assets and liabnhcy at fair value on that date; and any difference between those (air values 1s recogmsed i retaned earmings

Ind AS 116 requires an entity 1o assess whether a conteact or arrangement contams a lease In accerdance with Ind AS 116, this assessment should be
carried out at the inceplion of the centract or arrangement However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption where a first time adopter may assess
whethier a contract existmg at the date of transition to Ind AS's containg leases by applving paragraph 9-11 of Ind AS 116 to those cantracts on the basis ol
lacts and ccumstances existing at that date

The Company as [irst ume adopler as a lessee recogmised lease habilities and right to use assets, and had adopted tollowmg approach to all of its beases by
adopting modified retrospective method.

(a}y measured a lease babiliy at the date of transition to Ind AS. The Company has measured that lease linbility at the present value of the remaining lease
paymets, discounted using the lessee's increnental borrowing rate at the date of transition o Ind AS.

{b) measured a nght-of-asset at the date of wransttion to Id AS The nght-of-use assets were recogmsed based on the amount equal to the lease habilitics,
adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously recogmised and reclassificauion of Leasehold land recoprised previously under
lnance leases (rem property. plant and equipments

Practical expedients applicd:

In applying Ind AS 116 for the (st tme, the Company has used the followang pracucal expedients petmitted by the standard

i) apphed a smgle discount rate to a portfulw of leases with reasonably siular charactensiics (e a similar remaiming lease term for & simlar ¢lass of
underlving asset in a sinular cconomic environment).

th) elected not to apply the requirements of recogmising lease habilities and right 10 use assets tor which the [ease term ends witbun 12 months of the date of
wransion (o Ind A5 Instead . the Company accounted these leases as 1f’ they were short term leases and have accounted tese lease payments as an expense
an either o straught ling basis over the [ease term or another systemabic basis.
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{c}) elected not to apply the requiremnents ot recogrusing lease liabilities and nght to use assets lor which the underlying asset is of low vaiue Instead. the
Campany accounted hese leases as if they were short term [eases and have accounted these lease payments as an expense on either a straight hne basis over
the lease term or another systematic basis.

1d) excluded mitia] direct costs from the measurement ol the right Lo use assets at the date ol transition to Ind AS

{e) used hindsight, such as i determmning the lease term 1f the contract contains opuions Lo extend or wrounate the lease

+ Compound financizl instruments

When the hability compenent of a compound inancial instrument 1s no longer outstanding at the date ol ransition 1o Ind AS. a first=time adopter may elect
not to apply Ind AS 32 retraspectively to sphit the liability and equity components of the mstrument The Company has net spht the equiy and habiliny
component of shares eligible for buy back considering such compound financeal instrument 1s no longer cutstanding at the date of transition o Ind AS

S Revenue

A first ume adepter may apply the transttion provisions in paragraph C5 of Ind AS 115 In those paragraphs references o the "dawe of mital apphcauon”
shall be mterpreted as the begimning of the lirst Ind AS reporting period 18 first tme adepter decides to apply those transiien provisions. 1t shall alse
apply paragraph C6 of Ind AS 115

A first ume adapter 15 not requared 1o restaie contracts that were campleted belore the ransnon dawe A completed contract 15 a contract for wiich the
enny has transferred all o the goods or service wdentitted in aceordance with previous GAAP

The Cempany has apphed the above exemptions and consudered date of il apphication as date of wansiion and contract cumpleted belore the ransion
15 ol restated

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

1. Estimate
The estimates a1 April 01, 2021 and at March 31, 2022 are consistent with those made for the sume dates m accordance with Indian GAADR (alter
adjustments to reflect any difTerences in accounting policies) apart from the following items where application of Indran GAAP did ot require estimation

- Fair valuation of finoncial instruments carnied at FVTPL.

- Deternination of the discounted value for Fmancial instruments carried at amorhised cost

- Imparment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model
The estaimaies used by the Company 1o present these amounts v aceardance wath Ind AS reflect conditions at April 01, 2021, the date ol transition w Ind
AS and as of March 31, 2022

2, Clnssification and measurement of finsncinl nssets
ind AS 101 requires an entity Lo assess classification and measwrement of fimancial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist a1 the dine

of transition to Ind AS The Company has applied the above requirement on tanstiian date
(This space has mtentionally been left blanky
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Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Balance sheet
Reconeilintion of Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 and March 31, 2022

Particulars Bulance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
Previous Effect of Ind AS Previous Effecl of Ind AS
Indiun transition to Indian transition (v
GAADP* Ind AS GAAP* Ind AS
Assels
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and 35 8,381 38 250999  11,091.37 8,251.16 196007  10.211.23
investiment propertics
Intangible assets 1776 - 17.76 1315 - 1313
Right-of-use assels 4.5 - 534278 534278 - 3.260 91 3,260 91
FFanangial assels
(1} Investments 0358 - 038 058 - nsg
(n} Trade recenvables | 345902 {130 04) 332898 293529 (140 18) M5 11
() Loans - - - - - -
() Ouher financial assels Y4 67 - 94 67 406.69 - 406.6v
Non-current (ox assels 72799 - 72799 13930 - 139 30
Cther non-current issets 68 36 - 68 36 193 87 - 193 87
Total ngn-current assets 12,.949.76 772273 20,672.49 11,940.04 7.080.80 19.020.84
Current assets
Inventores 9.79) 77 - 079177 1341276 - 13412 76
Conlbracl asscls | 6609 1.660 31 2124 60 212460
I"mancial issety
{1 Trade recavalles 1 7.254 08 (382 5y 687218 89U y3 1429 80) 8537013
(1) Cash and cash ¢quivalents U8 62 - Jug 6! 010 38 . 1.010 18
(1) Bank balances other dian (1) ahove 6194 33 - 6,198 53 5.1635 37 - 3.165 37
(v} Lains 26.20 - 26.20 3360 B 33606
(v) Other Mmanesal assels 9133 - 91.33 £18.24 - 11824
Current tax assets - - 560 06 - 560.06
Other current assels 1,135.40 - 1,135.40 1.359.17 - 1.359.17
Tatal current assets 26,657 44 {382.50) 236,274.94  35784.27 (429 80y 35,354 47
Total assets 39.607,20 7.340,23 4694743 47.724.31 6,651.00 54.375.31
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capual 1,500 06 - 1,500.06 1,500 06 - 1,500.06
Other ey 1,3-8and I2 23.048 67 542936 2847823 232638 508547 3033185
Taotal equity 24.548.73 542956 29.978.29  26,746.44 508547 31,830
Liabilitics

Non-currcat liabilities
Financial liabilities

(1) Lease lialulitses 4 - 41968 41968 - 414.75 41475
(1) Borrowings 12.60 - 12.60 10]1.92 - 101 42
Government graimis 879 879 733 733
Net employee detined benefit halahities 1938 49 - 1,928 49 1.974 77 - 1,974 77
Delerred tax batuliigs (net) 10 (G35 506) 1,268 06 612 50 (370 05) {11696 2406 41
Tutal nun-current liabilities 1.294.32 1.087.74 28200 1,213.97 £.531.71 2. 745.08
Current liabllities

Contract habulinies 1,598 23 - 4,508 23 73909 - 875919
Financial ialwliues

(1) Lease liabilnies 4 - 28.20 28.20 - 33.82 3382
{11) Borrowings 182,83 - 182.83 234.20 - 23420
{sn1) Trade payables

~Toral outstanding dues of micro enterprises 67655 - 676 35 734.23 - 73423
and small enterprises
~Tatal outstanding dues of creditors other 8 6,168 56 194 73 6,363.29 731172 - 731172
than nucra enterprises and small enterprises

() Other Ninancial habilities 1.009 60} - 1.009 60 1.109 98 - 110998
Provisions 25002 - 23002 11578 - 11578
Government grants 147 - 1.47 147 - 147
Nut employee defined benefiv habilties 18293 - 18293 15443 - 154413
Qther current habilities 69396 - 693 96 1.230.05 - 1,230 05
Liabilities for current tax (net} - - 112.95 - 112,95
Total current liabilities 13,764.13 22293 13,987.08  19,763.90 33.82  19.797.72
Tatal linbilitics 15,058.47 19167 16.969.1:1 20.977.87 1,565.53 22,543.40
Tatal cquity and liabilities 39.607.20 7340023 40,9-47.43 47.724,31 6,651.00 54.375.31

* The Previous Indan GAALR figures have been reclassilied 1o conlirm o Ind AS preseniation requirements Tor the purpogg.
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Reconcilintion of profit or loss for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022
Particulars Nutes For the vear ended March 31, 2022
Previous Effects of Ind AS
Indinn transition to

GAADPH Ind As
Income
Revenug from operations Y 83,158 14 33610 83494 29
Other income 3 387.30 407 591.37
Total income (1) 83.745.44 340.17  84.085.6)
Expenses
Cost of raw matenial and components consumed 56.943 62 - 56,943 62
Increase i inventonies ol fuushed goods and work-in-progress [458.92) - 1458.92)
limployee benefits expense ] 8.791 70 130.38 8922 28
IFinance costs 4.6 403 38 42101 415 .49
Depreciation and amortization expense 343 31060 665 13 107573
Other expenses 1.4.6,9 141,132.80 365.3%  1L4L798.1Y
Taotal expenses {I1) 80,623.18 1,.203.21  81,826.39
Profit belore prior period items and tax 3102226 (863.04) 2259232
Prier period items 3 194.73 (194.73) -
Profit before tax (I-11=1I7 2.927.53 (668.31) 2.259,22
Tax expense (TV)
- Current tax 92803 - 928 005
= Adjustment of mceme tax relating to carlier years (net) 16.27 - 16.27
- Deferred wax charge/{eredit) 10 (201 27 (183.98) (385 13)
- Deterred 1ax charge/tcredit) tor earbier vear 113 23) - (1323)
Taotal tax expense (IV) 729.82 (183.90) REER:]
Irofit Tor the vear (I11-1V=1) 2,197.71 (484,35} 1,713.36
Other comprehensive income / (expense) (V1) Ll
Item that will not be re-elassified 1o profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/losses) of defined benets liability 2 - 13038 13058
Income tax effect 10 - 132 87) {32 87)
Other comprehensive income for the vear (net of tax) (V1) - gain/tloss) - 91,711 97.71
Totnl comprehensive income for the vear (V+VI = VID 2, 197.71 {346.64) 1.811.07

* The Previous Indian GAAP ligures have been reclassilied to conlirm 1o Ind AS presenmtation requitements for the purposes ol this note,

Foutnotes to the reconciliation of Balance Sheet as at April 01, 2021 and Mareh 31, 2022 and profit or loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

I. Provision for expected credit losses

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has created provision for impairment of receivables consists only in respect of specific amount For incurred losses.
Under Ind AS, imparrment allowance has been determined based on Expected Loss model (ECL). Duc to ECL model, the Company inpared 11s trade
receivable by Rs 512.54 Inkhs on transition date i e. April @1, 2021 leading to decrease in trade recervables and retaited earnings as at transibion date (¢
April 01, 2021 by Rs 512.54 lakhs Corresponding in year end March 31, 2022, there 1s a addibonal impairment allowance of Rs 37 .14 lakhs whech has
been recognezed in the statement of prolit and loss for the year ended March 31. 2022,

2. Defined benefit linbilities

Both under Indiun GAAP and Ind AS, the Company recognised costs related to its post-cmployment defined henefit plan on an actuartal basis Under
Indin GAAP. the enuire cost. icluding actuarral gams and losses, are charged to profit or loss Under Ind AS, remeasurements {comprising of actuaral
gams and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included i net terest on the net defined benelit habtlity and accardingly the return on
plan assets excluding amounts mcluded i net mterest on the net defmed benelnt liabiliy] are recogmsed mmediately i the balanee sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retmned earnings through OCI Thus remeasurement gans on net defined berelit liability has been recognized in the OCT
af Rs 130 38 lakhs (net of 1ax of Rs 97 71 lakhs) and accordingly the employee benelit cost has increased by Rs 130 58 takhs in the year ended March 31,
o

3. Praperty, plant and equipment and others

The Company hiss elected 10 measure property, plant and cquipiment at far vitlue ot the dine of uanstion to Ind AS Hence at the date of tansition ta [ng
AS.an ncrease of Rs 2,971 83 lukhs was recagmsed us farr valuatton gam 1n property, plant and guipment and others This amount has been recopnised
aginnst retoned canungs leading o mcrease in retained earing by same amuunt Due to change m cost as on Apnl 01, 2021, the depreciation and Net gan
on disposal of preperty, plant and equipment for year ended March 31, 2022 mcreased by Rs 559.96 lakhs and Rs 4.07 lakhs respectively
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4. Leases

Lease recognised as operating leases in previous GAAP

The Company has adopted modified retrospective method of Ind AS 116 and recognised the lease liabilities and righi-to-use assets at the date of transition
to Ind AS i.c. April 01, 2021 on the leases exisling at that date. Lease liability recognised at fair value by measuring at present value of the remaining lease
payments. discouned using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition (o Ind AS. Right to use asset recognised an amount equafk to the lease
liability, adjusied for any related prepaid. accrued lease payments (if any) previously recognised. Hence at the date of transition 1o Ind AS i.e. April 01,
2021, lease liability and right to use assct of Rs 44788 lakhs were recognised.

This led (o increase In depreciation and interest expense by Rs 45.43 lakhs and Rs 41.19 lakhs respectively and decrcase in (reversal of) rent of Rs 69.78
lakdss in the year ended March 31, 2022,

5. Disclosure of asset held under finance lease under previous GAAD

The Company has reclassified and disclosed the assets hield under finance lease from property. plant and equipment (o the right-to-use assets recognised as
per Ind AS 116. Accardingly, right-ta-use assets is increased and Property, plant and equipment is decreased by Rs 461.85 lakhs and as the Company has
elected 1o measurc right-1o-use assets (leasehold land) at fair value at the date of transition to Ind AS. hence an increase of Rs 4,433.03 lakhs was also
recognised as [air valuation gain in right-lo-use asscts (leasehold land). This amount has been recognised against retained camings leading to increase in
retained carnings by same amount. Due to change in cost of such leaschold land as on April 01, 2021, the depreciation for year ended March 31, 2022 also
increased by Rs 59.73 lakhs.

6. Commission on guarantee

As per provisions of Ind AS, Guarantees received [rom related parlies is indirectly a contribution in form of Equity to the Campany. The Company should
record the guaranteed charges at fair value / at arm’s length transaction. The [air value of the guarantee would have been paid for issuing a similar
guarantee for a loan taken by the Company (rom unrelated third party. The Company had not paid any commission to the related party. Therefore, the
Company considered this is akin to deemed capital contribution. Hence, bank charges ol Rs 41.64 lakhs and guarantee charges of Rs 0.92 lakh recognised
in profit and loss account for the financial year 2021-22 and corresponding impact is credited as equily component as on March 31, 2022,

7. Government Grant

As per Ind AS 20, the grants related to depreciable assels are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful life of the
respective assels. The Contpany has credit gramt of Rs 60 lakls to capital reserve in Indian GAAP. Hence the same is transferred 1o retained eamning on the
date of transition considering life of such asset has been expired.

8. I'rior period items

Ind AS 8 requires rectification of material prior period errors with retrospective effect. Hence prior period items were shown in comparative year adjusted
by restating the opening balanees of retained carning and liability at the iransition date. Henee the retained earning decreased by 194,73 lakhs.
Corresponding impact is recognised in trade payable. Prior period expense of Rs 194.73 lakbs reduced for the vear ended March 31, 2022.

9. Revenue {rom contract with customer
Revenue from Pre-engincered building contracts

TFhere were no significant adjustments required to the retained earnings at transition date i.e. April 1, 2021. Also. the application of Ind AS 115 did not
have any significant impact on recognition and measurement of revenue and related nems in the financial statements except reclassification.

The Company has reclassified the revenue reflected in the statement of profit and loss related 1o pre-engineering building contract from sale of product and
service.

Accordingly, revenue from sale of service and sale ol building material reduced by Rs 5,613.28 lakhs and Rs 51.931.19 lakhs respectively. Corresponding
increase in revenue from pre engineering building contract of Rs 57.544.47 lakhs,

Freight charged from customer.

As per Ind AS 115, if control is wansflerred 1o the customer only on receipl/acceptance of goods by him, the compuosite price will be recognised as revenue
ai that time {viz., on the fullilment of the performance obligation) and the forwarding and freight cost incurred by the Company would be recognised as
Mulfilment cost for supply of the goods. In previous GAAP [reight received [rom customer was netied ofl from freight cost. The Company has reclassified
the freight received amount o revenue from contract with customer. Accordingly the revenue from sale of building naterial and revenue [rom pre
enginecring building contract increased by Rs 19.63 lakhs and Rs 316.47 lakhs respectively. Corresponding increase in freight and forwarding expense of
Rs 336.10 lakhs.
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10. Deferred tax

Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting
protits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on lemporary differences
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition
ol deferred tax on new temporary dilferences which was not required under Indian GAATP

In acddruion, the various transitional adjustments lead 1o temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has 1o account for such
difterences Dederred ax adjustments are recognised n correlation to the underlying transacuon either i retaimed earmings or a separate component ol

cquin
Accordingly, deferred tax habiliy s increased by Rs 1,116 96 lakhs as at March 31. 2022 and by Rs 1.268.06 lakhs as at April 01, 2021 The deferred tax

chargeferedit) is increased by Rs. 13110 lakhs in yeur ended March 31, 2022

[1. Other comprehensive income
Under Indian GAAP, the Campany has not presented other comprehensive income (QCI) separately. Hence, it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to
profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, [ndian GAAP profil or loss is reconciled 1o tatal comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

12, Retained earnings
Retuned earmings as at Apnl 1, 2021 has been adjusted consequent 1o thwe Ind AS transition adjustments

(Tis spuve fues mitentionally heen feft biank)
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43, Rativ unalysis nnd is elenents

Ratio “of Times Numerator Denominator | Mareh 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022 { % change Renson for variance
Cuecent Rana Tines Cunent asagts Current 183 179 22109
Binluliees
Fotal debt* = Cunent 0 2 { of mere "
rebi-Iquiy Rano Tines borrowing + Non current | Tutal Edquiny 004 o0 8y [ 20,110 avcount ul merease i tala
borrowts dehr in current year
: . Dbt s
Larmngs for delt el senace
\ oo eres & . .
service= Net prolit before Principal On aecount ol increase in
Debn Senvice Coverage Rutio [ Tines taxes + depreciation and Rena I ents 002 2402 =99 94% | Earmings lor debt service in
amortization? Inlerest X p.y‘!’l > current year
expense including leuse
wpe Tiabilaty
. . . Average total i N
Return on Equity Ratiw o Net profit afler inxes** vernge toid 12 0% 554%| 309.53% Qn :Eccount ofincrease i Net
d equity Profivafler axes i current year
Imventury Tuemover Ratio Tunes Cost of poods sold Averaye 540 487 11 09%
3 Inventory
Trade Recewables Turnover Times Revenue from contracts | Average Trade 723 774 4 57%
Rano wilh customers Recervables
Ner purcliases = Gross
Trade Payables Tumover Ratio Timcs purchases - purcliase ;}_: 'c::;‘i":s.rmd‘ 80t 8.00 0.08%
return o
. . Revenue fio tracts  [Averag
Net Capital Turnover Rata Times cvenue fram conlrac Average 615 ¢00 2.57%
with customers Warkmyg capieal
B Revemue fram On ace Fancrense mn N
Nl Pealit Rata % Netprofit after taxes** Jeoninicts widh 7 259, 205%| 253200 :}u.oum of ncrease in et
—— Prodivaller tases in cuarent vear
Capntal
. " Employed On account ul micrease i Prafiy
. . Prafit betore iterest aik!
Retur un Capntad Fmployed (% nlf et e A bl Nt 26424 791%| 233 83%[befire mtetest and tax m the
: Worih - Totul current year
Debr*
Averane On Account of ngrease
Return onn Investment %o Tncome on [hvestment ln\'cs;l:u:ms 24.85% 53 34%| =53 42%]investment made at the year

el

*Tutal Debis mchedes Tease liabilitics m respect of right of usc assets.
** Piodie alker ta¢ betore ather comprehensive mgome

tThis space has suenronally been lept Mank)
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44, Other Statutery Infornation

1) The Campany does nat have amy Benanu property, where any proceedmngs has been nupited or pending agamst the Company for holdmg ay Bennm property

n} The Company does nut lave any transactions with struck-ofl compannes under section 243 of The Campanies Act, 2013,

w) The Company does ot have any chasges or sansfaction which 1s vet t be iegstered with ROC beyond the statutary pertod.

w} The Company has uot traded or invested in crypto currency or virual curtency during (he financial year

11 The Company hias not advanced any loan or ixsested fand in any otier persongs) or entitytes). mcluding foreign entities {inteniiedimes) with the wnderstancliag that the
mienmediary shall

a1 Dareetly on idneerly lend o1 invest i other peisons or einties wdennficd i any manna whitsoesen by o ool e Lehalt of the company (ulimate benslicimnes) a
b} Provede any gualaniee, sceunty or the Itke to 61 on belal{ ol the ulinnate hereficianes

1) The Company has notrecenved uny fund from any personts) o entilyies), weludig foreign cutiwes (fanding panys with the understanding (whether recorded u writing
w atherwise that the campany shall

a1 Eurectly or mdirextly lend or mvest m other persans or emivies wentificd un any manner whatsoever by er an of the behald ol the company (ulumate bereficiaries} o

by Prosade any guaranty. secunty or the bke to or on behalf of the wlumate beneficianes
snny The Company does not have any suel transactions wlhich is wol recorded in books of account that have been surrendered vr disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessinent under the Tncome Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provision of the Income Tax Act, 1961).
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